Biomedical Devices and Medical Physics: Innovation for Health

Editors

Karar Mohamed Ali Jassim Mohamed

Department Medical Physics, Al-Mustaqbal University, Iraq

Hawraa Abbas Laftah

Department of Medical Devices Technology Engineering, Al Mansour University College, Iraq

Rakan Mohammed Dhanon

Department of Medical devices Technology Engineering Alfarahidi University College, Iraq

Jihad Hayder Kadhim

Department of Medical Devices Technology Engineering AL-Esraa University, Iraq

Saja Hammoudi Salman

Department of Laser and Optical Electronics Engineering, University of Kut, Iraq

Bright Sky Publications TM New Delhi Published By: Bright Sky Publications

Bright Sky Publication Office No. 3, 1st Floor, Pocket - H34, SEC-3, Rohini, Delhi, 110085, India

Editors: Karar Mohamed Ali Jassim Mohamed, Hawraa Abbas Laftah, Rakan Mohammed Dhanon, Jihad Hayder Kadhim and Saja Hammoudi Salman

The author/publisher has attempted to trace and acknowledge the materials reproduced in this publication and apologize if permission and acknowledgements to publish in this form have not been given. If any material has not been acknowledged please write and let us know so that we may rectify it.

© Bright Sky Publications

Edition: 1st

Publication Year: 2025

Pages: 103

Paperback ISBN: 978-93-6233-086-4

E-Book ISBN: 978-93-6233-282-0

DOI: https://doi.org/10.62906/bs.book.426

Price: ₹ 540/-

Contents

S. No.	Chapters	Page Nos.	
	Abstract	01	
1.	Introduction to Biomedical Devices	02-03	
2.	Fundamentals of Medical Physics	04-05	
3.	Current Trends in Biomedical Engineering	06-07	
4.	Regulatory Framework for Medical Devices	08-09	
5.	Design and Development of Biomedical Devices	10-13	
6.	Imaging Technologies	14-17	
7.	Therapeutic Devices	18-22	
8.	Wearable Health Technologies	23-27	
9.	Telemedicine and Digital Health	28-34	
10.	Artificial Intelligence in Healthcare	35-38	
11.	Nanotechnology in Medicine	39-44	
12.	Robotics in Surgery	45-48	
13.	Biomaterials and Tissue Engineering	49-51	
14.	Challenges in Biomedical Device Development	52-57	
15.	Future Perspectives in Medical Physics	58-59	
16.	Case Studies of Successful Innovations	60	
17.	Ethical and Social Implications	61-63	
18	Conclusion	64	
	References	65-103	

Abstract

The growing and ever-increasing demand for new technologies and innovative clinical techniques continues to be a key consideration in the health sector. These advanced systems have significantly improved health monitoring and treatment modalities. However, the most important aspect of medical innovation has not been thoroughly studied yet. In recent times, medical innovation has emerged as the sole component that holds the potential to provide a better quality of life for patients and communities alike. Biomedical engineering primarily focuses on this vital factor, concentrating on designing compact sensors, developing innovative systems, facilitating rapid prototyping, and creating low-cost clinical techniques that can be widely implemented. Such advancements are essential for enhancing patient care and improving health outcomes across various populations.

Biomedical device innovation presents exciting opportunities to enhance the provision of healthcare for societies around the world. The impact of this work goes beyond democratic access to healthcare. Innovations applied to biomedical devices that improve quality of life have the potential to reduce costs and prevent social-economic gaps across all countries. Rapid access access to hospitals during the COVID-19 outbreak increased demand for biomedical devices worldwide, and many examples of proven laboratory research were inadequate for a wide range of scientific applications.

Therefore, biomedical device innovation can accelerate the overall impact of science and technology.

Introduction to Biomedical Devices

Biomedical devices are essential and critical instruments, apparatuses, machines, or implants that can be employed either independently or in conjunction with others, whether utilized *in vitro* or *in vivo*, specifically for the vital purposes of prevention, diagnosis, monitoring, treatment, or alleviation of a wide array of diseases. These devices exhibit a vast range of complexity, extending from simple items such as reading glasses, which countless individuals rely on daily, to highly sophisticated and intricate programmable pacemakers that capitalize on advanced computing technology and innovative engineering practices. In recent years, the domain of biomedical devices has witnessed tremendous growth and evolution, establishing itself as an integral and indispensable component of the modern healthcare infrastructure and system.

Several decades ago, the processes and methodologies of diagnosis relied heavily on the discerning observations made by healthcare professionals, alongside a limited assortment of simple and basic instruments, exemplified by stethoscopes for listening to healthy heartbeats and breathing sounds, sphygmomanometers employed for measuring blood pressure levels, and thermometers used to check body temperatures efficiently. The advancements in the field of medical science often hinged more on serendipity, chance discoveries made by accident, and less on the rational design and rigorous engineering principles that guide the field today. In stark contrast, contemporary medicine now employs a broad and diverse spectrum of sophisticated equipment designed to assist healthcare professionals in the detection and accurate diagnosis of medical conditions, along with the effective treatment of various tissue damages, as well as in the management of patients who present with multiple disorders or those who experience significant trauma incidents.

Technological advances in control systems, sensor technology, and biomedical devices, in addition to sophisticated instrumentation techniques, contribute significantly to the engineering and creation of cutting-edge medical technologies that not only enhance the quality of care provided but also improve the accessibility of healthcare services across the globe. This ultimately leads to better health outcomes for patients everywhere and enables healthcare personnel to provide more effective interventions. These remarkable developments pave the way for a more comprehensive and precise approach to modern medicine, ensuring that patients receive the most effective treatment options and healthcare solutions available today [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10]

The overarching concept that underpins the world of medical devices is centered around the important notion that when healthcare professionals are not only equipped but also empowered with access to advanced devices and state-of-the-art instrumentation, they are considerably better positioned to deliver efficient and timely care along with effective treatments that are meticulously tailored to meet the unique needs of their diverse patients. Concurrently, the dynamic field of biomedical engineering has undergone a significant and profound transformation, which has been driven by the rapid and often astonishing pace of advancements in various high-tech and technologies such as microprocessors, smart materials, nanotechnology, and artificial intelligence (AI). These groundbreaking advancements have collectively led to a plethora of innovations that expansively span a wide array of sub-disciplines within the medical field, contributing to the evolution of modern healthcare. The emergence and integration of these new developments have consequently paved the way for the creation of cutting-edge and highly sophisticated devices, which include but are not limited to, wearable diagnostics that monitor essential health metrics in real-time, advanced imaging modalities that strikingly enhance the accuracy of diagnoses and assessments, non-invasive ultrasound therapies that are aimed at providing effective and safer treatment options, as well as sophisticated telerobotics that significantly facilitate remote healthcare solutions, thus broadly broadening the reach and accessibility of comprehensive medical care to underserved populations. [11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18]

Fundamentals of Medical Physics

The category of medical devices that has had a tremendously significant and profound impact on patient care in the recent decades is notably categorized within the broad and perpetually evolving umbrella of "Medical Physics." This expansive field encompasses an impressive and diverse array of innovative biomedical devices that play a crucial role in significantly enhancing the quality of health care and notably improving patient outcomes across a wide variety of medical settings and clinical environments. Within this section, we will thoroughly explore and clearly set forth the essential chemical, physical, and engineering platforms that serve as critical foundational elements for the multitude of other relevant subject areas within the intricate field of medical technology. Additionally, we will reference several carefully selected systems as illustrative examples to effectively convey these important concepts while emphasizing their real-world practical applications in diverse clinical scenarios. Through this detailed examination and comprehensive analysis, we aim to decisively underscore the significant advancements that have been made in medical devices and their transformative effects on patient care, specifically highlighting the integral role they play in advancing medical practice and vastly improving patient experiences. These groundbreaking innovations not only enhance diagnostic capabilities but also facilitate more effective and targeted treatment options, better management of complex medical conditions, and ultimately contribute to the overall enhancement of health services provision within various healthcare systems. [19, 20, 21, 22, 16, 6, 7, 23, 24, 25]

Medical physics can be comprehensively described and understood as the applied branch of physics that is specifically and diligently concerned with the numerous diverse applications of fundamental physical principles and sophisticated scientific techniques that are effectively employed within the advanced and evolving field of medicine. This is particularly true in the vital and critical context of studying and skillfully utilizing radiation for various important and essential purposes such as accurate diagnosis and effective therapy, both of which are critical components of modern healthcare practices. The continuous, progressive development of innovative

biomedical devices within the realm of medical physics is primarily aimed at significantly advancing human healthcare, especially through improved diagnostics and the diverse effective treatment options that are now readily available in today's clinical settings.

In this critical context, the comprehensive use of radiation undergoes thorough and rigorous quality control checks in all health-related applications to ensure the utmost safety for patients undergoing treatment, as well as for the allied healthcare personnel who are involved in these intricate processes. These essential physical principles are generally applied across a wide and varied range of biomedical devices, which serve to enhance the efficacy of medical interventions. Numerous relevant examples that illustrate these diverse applications will be thoughtfully detailed in the subsequent subsections of the paper that follows, providing readers with a deeper understanding of how medical physics plays a crucial role in enhancing patient care and optimizing various medical procedures.

The intricate relationship between physics and medicine is one of great significance and importance, paving the way for innovative solutions and groundbreaking breakthroughs that have the potential to transform and revolutionize the future of healthcare on a global scale. The ongoing collaboration between physicists and medical professionals continues to yield advancements that improve treatment accuracy, leading to better patient outcomes. As the landscape of healthcare evolves, the contributions of medical physics are pivotal in shaping new methodologies that address the challenges present in contemporary medicine. [22, 21, 7, 16, 26, 27, 28, 15, 29]

Luminescent and Optical: These remarkable properties are extensively utilized in various medical systems, including sophisticated fiber optics, advanced ophthalmoscopes, and other essential visual medical apparatus. Additionally, they play a critical role in photodynamic therapy, offering innovative treatments, as well as in the precise dosages of various medicines, enhancing their effectiveness in clinical applications. [30]

Current Trends in Biomedical Engineering

The twenty-first century distinctly and unequivocally defines the era of global information and communication, which is characterized by the remarkable and significant convergence of multiple, diverse technologies, often referred to collectively as Nano-bio-info-cognitive technologies. This powerful confluence creates a complex and intricate landscape where the increasing demands from various institutions in society, alongside strategic and calculated government decisions, have already significantly and quickly accelerated innovations in the rapidly evolving global market. This acceleration is starkly evident in the continuously rising trend of global research and development (R&D) in what can be viewed as a new and fierce arms race focused on technological competitiveness and leadership. Despite the fact that different nations are currently at various and differing stages of economic development, it is crucial and imperative to acknowledge that the inequalities that are present in the R&D sectors of the vibrant innovation landscape remain substantial and pronounced among different countries. Advanced nations, long known for their innovative prowess and capabilities, such as the United States, Germany, Japan, and France, continue to maintain and sustain a competitive edge against newly emerging and developing nations. Notably, these emerging nations, particularly China and South Korea, are making significant strides and progress and are competing vigorously in the global arena. As society progresses and evolves, the new and cutting-edge technologies that researchers and innovators hope to develop and implement include cleaner and more sustainable alternative sources of energy that rely on hydrogen fuel cells. This transformational and revolutionary change is also expected to encompass nanomaterials that will be utilized for packaging and a variety of different types of equipment across industries. Furthermore, advancements in robotic intelligence, along with emerging capabilities in molecular manufacturing, and groundbreaking biomedical technologies, are consistently at the forefront of this exciting progress. These innovations hold immense potential for improving overall quality of life and for addressing pressing global challenges that affect humanity, resonating powerfully with the aspirations and expectations of modern society and its progression into the future [31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38]

The remarkable growth of the biomedical engineering field ties naturally to the ongoing global wave of technological innovation that supports and strengthens healthcare systems while significantly improving the products and services available. This ultimately leads to a better quality of life for individuals everywhere, ensuring that healthcare delivery can meet diverse and evolving needs. Biomedical engineering encompasses a remarkably wide and varied spectrum of devices and systems, which play a vital role in innovative diagnostics as well as the treatment of various medical conditions across different populations. This expansive field spans a broad array of areas, including but not limited to medical instruments, advanced materials development, biomechanics, and even the creation of sophisticated health management software designed to enhance patient care and streamline healthcare processes. According to data gathered from the World Health Organization (WHO), a staggering 70% of the medical equipment that is found in developing countries goes unused primarily due to a lack of proper maintenance. Additionally, there exists a significant shortage of qualified healthcare personnel who are trained and capable of operating these advanced instruments effectively and safely. Given these pressing needs and challenges that persist within global healthcare systems, emerging innovations in the field of biomedical engineering, including groundbreaking artificial intelligence applications, cutting-edge nanotechnologies, and advanced robotics, will be examined in more detail to understand their potential contributions. These crucial and exciting advancements will help illustrate the prevalent convergence trend that underlies the broad and transformative landscape of biomedical engineering today, highlighting not only the challenges faced but also the promising solutions that are on the horizon. [2, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45]

Regulatory Framework for Medical Devices

The global community increasingly emphasizes the critical transformative role of the Biomedical Engineering field when it comes to developing innovative medical devices that specifically cater to the needs of patients, physicians, and medical institutions alike. While the biomedical device industry continues to remain dynamic, rapidly evolving, and lucrative, the stringent and complex regulatory environment significantly influences both investments and the pace of innovation within this critical sector. It is essential to recognize that overregulation may inadvertently stifle progress and slow down the development of new, life-saving technologies; however, oversight and regulation are undeniable necessities for ensuring the safety, efficacy, and reliability of these medical devices. The advent of modern medical applications serves to highlight the delicate balance that exists between the protection of public health and the promotion of innovation; for instance, Mobile MIM, which significantly enhances medical image review processes, was able to secure FDA approval only after undergoing an extensive and rigorous evaluation process to ensure its safety and effectiveness. South Africa has proactively responded to these numerous challenges through the implementation of the Medicines and Related Substances Amendment Act 14 of 2015, which led to the establishment of the SA Health Products Regulatory Authority (SAHPRA). This regulatory body has implemented a comprehensive four-tier, risk-based classification system that governs licensing and registration across all medical device classes in the country. Consequently, all medical device manufacturers, distributors, and wholesalers are now mandated to obtain an establishment licence, and foreign producers are required to submit detailed and thorough documentation to comply with local regulations. The mandate of SAHPRA encompasses periodic re-evaluation and ongoing monitoring of medical devices already on the market. Nevertheless, the overall efficacy of these regulations relies heavily on comprehensive and consistent implementation, which includes the cultivation of a skilled workforce and the timely processing of registrations and approvals. In a similar vein, India has made noteworthy strides with the introduction of the Indian Medical Device Rules (IMDR) in 2018, which aim to foster transparency and support the growth of indigenous manufacturing. However, when conducting a comparative analysis with the European Union's Medical Device Regulation (MDR) and In Vitro Diagnostic Regulation (IVDR) frameworks, several areas requiring enhancement become apparent, particularly in terms of governance structures, transparency mechanisms, and the facilitation of business operations. The IMDR currently mandates a single pre-marketing clinical evaluation, lacking ongoing lifecycle assessment of devices; additionally, the pre-market clinical safety data requirements stipulated by the IMDR are less stringent than those required for CE certification in Europe, potentially resulting in certain safety vulnerabilities. Furthermore, the absence of a centralized, publicly accessible safety database starkly contrasts with the EU's robust EUDAMED system, which plays a vital role in ensuring device transparency and accountability. The noticeable lack of standardized device evaluation protocols throughout the entire product lifecycle further underscores the pressing need for refinement and improvement in regulatory practices. Despite many devices still continuing to be classified as drugs under the Drugs and Cosmetics Act, anticipated guideline revisions hold the promise to unify definitions under a comprehensive regulatory framework, thereby simplifying regulation and ultimately attracting increased investment into this vital sector. [46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55]

Design and Development of Biomedical Devices

User-centred design and prototyping processes are absolutely central to the progressive and ongoing development of biomedical devices in today's everevolving healthcare landscape. Building upon a robust regulatory framework that provides essential safety and efficacy guidelines, the design approach places a strong emphasis on an early and thorough focus on understanding the user's perspective. Clinical interviews conducted with users help to meticulously identify critical needs and significant problems that could arise during the utilization of these devices, while structured models specifically outline the top-level requirements from a comprehensive technical standpoint. During the preliminary design phase, this intricate process generates several generic concepts that are meticulously based on the identified requirements gathered from user feedback. After careful consideration and rigorous evaluation, one optimal concept is then selected for further detailed development and extensive embodied design, from which a tangible prototype is fabricated and subsequently tested to ensure effectiveness and functionality in real-world conditions. In the case of a sophisticated robot-assisted fracture surgery system, the resulting product not only met but fully complied with stringent regulatory standards, ensuring safety, reliability, and efficiency in its application across various clinical scenarios. User-centred methodologies, along with established and rigorously tested design models, enable the timely and efficient production of complex systems that ultimately satisfy the varying requirements and expectations of clinical settings in a fast-paced healthcare environment. Future work is ambitiously aimed at the development of a comprehensive general strategy for healthcare systems that systematically incorporate valuable user input and feedback, thereby enhancing the overall efficacy, safety, and adaptability of biomedical devices to meet the dynamic needs of both healthcare providers and patients. [56, 1, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64]

5.1 User-Centered Design Principles

Research continues to demonstrate consistently that there exists a significant and undeniable link between poor medical device design and the

overall safety and well-being of patients receiving medical care. Analysis of almost 13,000 recorded incidents logged in the National Patient Safety Agency database has indicated that medical devices and equipment have played a critical role in numerous patient safety incidents over the years, particularly when the device was designed without proper considerations or adaptations for effective use in the specific patient context and their surrounding environment and conditions. At the very least, an inability to fully understand the key benefits and potential risks of a particular device or piece of equipment can severely slow down the adoption process within healthcare settings, leading to considerable delays in implementation and higher chances of adverse outcomes. In various other sectors, a noticeable lack of user-centered design principles during the product development process has been shown to negatively impact the acceptance and trust rate of products among users, ultimately hindering their overall effectiveness and usability in real-world scenarios and applications. As such, prioritizing thoughtful design that takes user experience into account is paramount for the future development of medical devices, as it can significantly enhance patient safety and overall satisfaction with care received by patients in diverse medical environments. [65, 66, 67, 68, 69]

Poor medical device design is intricately linked to use-related errors, where the device may superficially appear to function correctly during various medical procedures. However, it can happen that the user, whether they are a healthcare professional or a caregiver, may inadvertently perform or neglect to execute a necessary task during their interaction with the device at hand. Such errors, while appearing seemingly minor in certain contexts, can carry significant and far-reaching regulatory implications, particularly if they lead to unintended patient harm or complications. In extreme cases, these ongoing issues can result in a product's complete withdrawal from the market entirely, which poses a serious risk not only to the manufacturers but also significantly jeopardizes patient safety overall. Therefore, a fundamental tenet of conscientious medical device development is to proactively address and identify use-related risks that can emerge during the interaction between the intended user group and the medical device itself. This proactive approach is especially vital within the varied environments in which these devices will be utilized. It is crucial to consider all the diverse user profiles involved in this multifaceted interaction, particularly focusing on any vulnerable groups or individuals who may be less capable of effectively using the device due to various limitations or challenges they may face. Additionally, careful attention and thorough analysis must be paid to the specific context in which the device will be operated, as this significantly impacts usability and safety outcomes for the end-users and the patients receiving care. [70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77]

User-centred design principles advocate for a comprehensive and systematic development process that is strategically aligned with the specific needs and preferences of users, alongside ergonomic principles and standards that are critical for effective design. These standards, such as those outlined by the International Organisation for Standardisation's (ISO), particularly focus on human-centred design for interactive systems, underscoring the importance of adapting designs that truly meet human requirements. The medical device industry consciously responds to such identified needs by diligently incorporating extensive user research into the design and development process, gathering insights and feedback that help shape outcomes. This proactive approach not only addresses the various issues that have been identified but also implements targeted mitigation strategies designed to effectively counter them in real-world applications. By actively engaging in this manner, it becomes eminently possible to influence or guide safe and appropriate behaviours amongst users, leading to a more intuitive interaction with devices. Such focused methodologies are generally categorised under the overarching heading of design with intent, which emphasises purposeful design choices aimed at significantly enhancing user interaction and usability. Furthermore, through the thoughtful incorporation of human factors and ergonomics principles-along with the critical interrogation of available guidance and best practices-it is indeed feasible to provide a robust framework that developers can employ in the intricate development of biomedical devices. At the core of such a structured framework is the unwavering commitment to supporting adherence to current regulations and relevant standards, as well as sector-specific guidance that is vital in this field. This dual commitment not only optimises patient safety but also enhances overall device performance, ensuring that the end-user experience is both positive and effective, while also contributing to broader healthcare objectives and better patient outcomes. [56, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84]

5.2 Prototyping and Testing

For a device to transition successfully from concept to a commercial product, it is typically necessary for it to undergo extensive and rigorous clinical trials. These trials are specifically designed to thoroughly evaluate, assess, and confirm both its safety and effectiveness in the intended application. As a result, the entire process surrounding the development of a biomedical device can often become quite lengthy and significantly

expensive. This endeavor requires a considerable investment of time, a variety of resources, and substantial funding. Hence, ensuring that each stage of development meets the required standards is crucial for its eventual success in the market. [85, 86, 87, 88, 89]

Design and development (D&D) refers to a dynamic and ever-evolving continuous process, in which the initial conceptual design is meticulously refined and enhanced to meet specific project requirements and the varied contexts of usage. This includes consideration for different environments and user capabilities, while the actual physical product or system is effectively developed through various stages. The primary aim of the D&D process is to maximize customer satisfaction while simultaneously minimizing any associated risks that could impede the project's success. Thus, the guidance provided in this section is firmly based on an iterative approach, which significantly emphasizes the crucial importance of engaging with users early on and maintaining regular interactions throughout the entire development lifecycle. This ongoing and constructive interaction ensures that user feedback is thoroughly integrated at every stage of the process, enabling the creation of an optimal final product that fully aligns with user needs, preferences, and expectations. The final goal is to ensure that the end product not only meets the original design specifications but also enhances user experience through continuous improvement and adaptation to changing conditions and requirements. [90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95]

Imaging Technologies

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) is a sophisticated technique that leverages the short-range magnetic dipole-dipole interaction found between excited protons and those located in their immediate vicinity. To achieve imaging, a magnetic field gradient is systematically imposed on the specific examination area, thereby establishing a spatial variation of the static field. This variation influences the precessional frequency of the protons. Subsequently, by applying a meticulously sequenced set of radio pulses at designated frequencies, a rich spatial distribution of proton densities along with their relaxation times is obtained as a function of time. In contrast, Xray computed tomography (CT) operates on a different principle, fundamentally relying on the transmission of a high-intensity X-ray energy spectrum through the target area of examination. The X-rays that successfully pass through the object are then collected and analyzed based on their energy spectrum. This collected data is eventually reconstructed into a detailed tomographic image that represents a cross-section of the object being studied. The X-ray energy employed is intrinsically related to the linear attenuation coefficients identified in the projected areas, which are influenced by various factors such as tissue density, the specific energy of the X-rays, and the atomic number of the respective tissue. This relationship enables the differentiation of cross-sectional tissues, exemplified by the significant difference in attenuation coefficients, such that the lung exhibits a notably lower attenuation coefficient in comparison to bone. Ultrasound (US) imaging employs yet another different methodology, focusing on determining the variations in acoustic impedance that correspond to differing compositions and densities of tissues. An ultrasonic carrier wave is transmitted through the area under examination; the variations in acoustic impedance encountered produce reflections of the incident wave, which results in returning echo signals. These echoes can be processed by a computer transducer, which derives the acoustic impedance of any given tissue based on the measured echoes alongside the original incident signal. Through the analysis of these data, the acoustic characteristics of the examined tissues can be assessed, which ultimately allows for the generation of an image indicating the cross-section of the tissues in question. In the context of X-ray imaging, contrast is established through the intensity differences that exist between the incident rays and the rays that are transmitted through the object. The World Health Organization has classified this technology as the leading unsafe medical imaging modality, particularly due to the potential health risks associated with repeated exposure to radiation. The adverse effects resultant from multiple exposures, coupled with an increasing interest in the early detection of medical conditions, have propelled advancements leading to the design of low-dose yet highresolution imaging equipment, as well as the development of sophisticated algorithms for enhanced image sensitivity and clarity. An illustrative example of the quantitative imaging technologies that have emerged includes digital mammography and digital angiography, both of which represent significant advancements in the field. While CT and MRI stand out as the two most commonly utilized cross-sectional imaging techniques in clinical practice, it is important to note that diverse methodologies are employed to attain optimal image-acquisition methods, which vary based on the specific application for which the imaging is intended. [96, 97, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103]

6.1 MRI and CT Scanning

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) and computed tomography (CT) stand out prominently as the two most widely utilized medical imaging modalities available in today's advanced healthcare landscape. These two groundbreaking technologies are employed individually across a vast array of diverse applications to meticulously assess normal anatomical structures and facilitate the accurate diagnosis of countless diseases that significantly affect individuals across the globe. Notably, MRI and CT bring to the table a range of complementary advantages and inherent limitations, which often serve to enhance their overall value when used in tandem in clinical practice. CT, for instance, harnesses low-energy X-rays to create intricate and detailed three-dimensional maps of electron density present within the patient's body. This remarkable technique proves particularly effective in areas where rapid variations in linear attenuation occur, especially within the lungs, the skeletal system, including bone, and within vascular structures such as blood vessels. On the opposite side of the spectrum, MRI leverages the power of radiofrequency (RF) signals that are highly sensitive to the unique magnetic properties present within the localized water molecules in the specific imaging area. Particularly noteworthy is the T2 modality, which plays a critical role in accurately measuring the water content and oxygen saturation levels in various soft tissues throughout the body. Both imaging techniques are extensively and widely employed for numerous crucial applications, including the diagnosis, ongoing monitoring, and detailed tracking of conditions such as brain tumors, lung cancer, breast cancer, and osteoarthritis. These conditions underscore the paramount importance of precise imaging capabilities in the medical field, where time and accuracy can make all the difference in patient outcomes. Since it is widely recognized that neither modality consistently achieves optimal resolutions and sensitivity simultaneously, the idea of integrating both techniques to provide enhanced "mega-modality" capabilities holds tremendous promise in the realm of medical diagnostics. Such a combination could deliver unprecedented improvements in both resolution and sensitivity within a single scan, which would indeed be a game changer in the context of early detection and effective treatment of various forms of cancer, potentially saving countless lives. However, the design and construction of such a rare and innovative combination of two powerful in vivo imaging modalities will undoubtedly present considerable challenges that must be thoughtfully addressed by researchers and medical professionals alike as they diligently work towards this exciting and groundbreaking goal in modern medicine. [104, 105, 106, 97, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112]

6.2 Ultrasound and X-Ray Technologies

Ultrasound and X-ray imaging technologies serve as essential and pivotal components in the expansive research landscape that exists within the vast and ever-evolving field of medical physics. These technologies have an incredibly profound and far-reaching influence on a diverse range of modern healthcare practices and procedures. Specifically, these imaging modalities are not only widely utilized in various clinical settings for dynamic imaging purposes but also present substantial opportunities for future innovation, advancement, and further development in both their practical applications and underlying technologies. As scientific understanding and technology continue to progress, the potential for enhancement in these imaging techniques expands immensely, paving the way for exciting new diagnostic and therapeutic approaches that can significantly improve patient care and outcomes. The ongoing research and development in these areas promise transformative changes in the way healthcare is delivered, fostering improved accuracy in diagnostics, enhanced treatment planning, and ultimately, better health results for patients. [105, 113, 114, 107, 97]

Ultrasound scans play an incredibly vital role in the expansive field of medical imaging, specifically focusing on the soft tissues that are so prevalent throughout the human body, while also providing real-time visualisations and assessments of bone movement during various physical activities. This advanced and dynamic examination technique allows for the early and accurate detection of any potential damage that might occur to bone structures, cartilage, or other soft tissues, which makes it an indispensable tool in conjunction with the more traditional and static MRI scans that are commonly utilized in the highly specialized realm of medical diagnostics. The recent advancements and modern availability of swept volume three-dimensional ultrasound scanners have greatly improved imaging capabilities, permitting the acquisition of spatial data across significantly larger volumes than previously possible. This cutting-edge technology not only facilitates thorough assessments of cartilage thickness, providing detailed measurements but also enables intricate evaluations of joint kinematics, offering better insight into movement patterns. Consequently, ultrasound can provide invaluable insights that are crucial for early diagnosis of various conditions, as well as the development of effective treatment strategies aimed at improving musculoskeletal health and overall patient outcomes, making it an essential component in comprehensive patient care and rehabilitation. [115, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 122]

Therapeutic Devices

Biomedical devices play an immensely crucial role in delivering therapeutic treatment through a diverse range of methods, encompassing both implantable options and non-invasive alternatives that provide relief and support to patients. These devices are meticulously designed with advanced technology to target specific wounds, assist in maintaining and supporting essential bodily functions, enhance physical abilities, or even supplement and bolster the body's immune systems, enabling individuals to lead healthier lives. The choices available among these different types of devices depend on a multitude of factors, including individual physiological conditions, clinical requirements, and operational considerations that must be carefully assessed, understood, and tailored to each patient's unique situation. Furthermore, therapeutic aids can either replace missing or damaged body parts or enhance the existing functionality of vital organs and systems, with each unique design being meticulously tailored to meet the specific needs of patients based on their condition and lifestyle. The complexity of biomedical devices thus lies in their remarkable ability to adapt to a wide variety of applications, while consistently ensuring the safety, security, effectiveness of the treatment provided to individuals from varied backgrounds. This intricate balance of factors contributes significantly to the ongoing advancements and innovations within the field of biomedical technology and treatment methodologies, paving the way for revolutionary improvements that enhance patient care and outcomes. As research continues to evolve, the potential for novel biomedical devices becomes even more promising, driving forth solutions that can transform traditional treatment approaches into more effective therapeutic options for those in need. [123, 124, 21, 125, 126, 127, 151

Implantable devices play a crucial and significant role in assisting various organs or vascular systems in the human body, with the primary aim of not only restoring lost capacity but also adding entirely new capabilities that were not previously available. These advanced medical technologies can encompass a wide range of functions, such as electrophysiological regulation or innovative drug delivery mechanisms that operate efficiently through a

variety of implants, specialized canals, membranes, or even surrounding tissues. The devices that are categorized as all-body encompass an extensive and diverse range of medical apparatus. These include, but are not limited to, innovative pumps designed for effective fluid management, advanced dialysis apparatus that supports kidney function effectively and seamlessly, heart-lung machines that provide essential respiratory and circulatory assistance during critical surgical procedures, as well as sophisticated anesthesia systems meticulously designed to optimize patient comfort and safety during various surgical interventions. Furthermore, more supportive devices such as heating pads specifically intended for pain relief, and a myriad of innovative tools developed to manage immobility, deliver essential support both internally and externally to patients, ensuring overall health and well-being for everyone who relies on these helpful technologies to navigate through their recovery journeys with greater ease. The collaborative workings of these devices can together lead to a significant and remarkable improvement in the overall quality of life for those affected by chronic conditions, allowing them to lead more fulfilling and meaningful lives despite the medical challenges they might face [128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 135]

Non-invasive aids have emerged as pivotal components in the fields of health and rehabilitation, significantly intervening either through direct physiological action or by effectively stimulating a variety of natural body responses in numerous beneficial ways. Many noteworthy examples can be highlighted, including advanced beam treatments that remarkably contribute to exceptionally effective wound healing processes, breath-analyzers that serve a crucial role in diagnosing a broad spectrum of medical conditions, and biofeedback apparatus that educate individuals on how to consciously regulate their physiological processes, all of these advancements work collaboratively to enhance personal well-being. Furthermore, medical lasers, all meticulously calibrated for precise and effective stimulation, are transforming the landscape of how patients are treated within clinical settings, providing innovative therapies that were previously unimaginable. Beyond these cutting-edge techniques, the category of physical aids encompasses a wide array of inventive solutions tailored to improve quality of life. This includes intricately designed prosthetics for limbs and organs, orthopedic braces that facilitate movement limitation and offer critical support during the recovery process, as well as bionics that focus on artificial enhancements aimed at improving mobility. Additionally, the array of speech synthesizers and interpretive tools available today provides essential assistance to those facing disabilities, helping to bridge communication gaps that can otherwise hinder everyday interactions. These devices prove to be life-changing and significantly enhance communication for countless individuals. In pursuing excellence, a comprehensive and user-centric design approach is diligently employed that prioritizes user experience above all else, ensuring the effectiveness and acceptance of these therapeutic devices are consistently maintained at the highest feasible levels. This thoughtful design philosophy guarantees that individuals receive the optimal support and functionality that they need within their daily lives, consequently enhancing their independence as well as their overall quality of life [136, 137, 138, 139, 140, 141, 142, 143]

7.1 Implantable Devices

The increasing demand for implantable devices has remarkably contributed to the significant development and substantial growth of a diverse range of biomedical implantable devices that cater to an extensive array of critical healthcare applications. This trend holds particular importance for patients who require continuous monitoring due to chronic diseases, as well as those who often face limited or inconsistent access to essential healthcare services. Traditional approaches to powering these lifesaving devices have frequently been hampered by various constraints related to battery lifetimes, which often prove to be insufficient for long-term and reliable use in many standard scenarios. As a result, there exists a compelling impetus and urgent need for the exploration of innovative technologies that can ensure the uninterrupted operation of these essential medical devices without the limitations that come with conventional batteries. Wireless power transfer (WPT) emerges as a highly promising method designed to facilitate efficient and continuous power delivery to an extensive array of implantable devices, effectively bypassing many of the disadvantages associated with battery dependence, which are often prohibitive and problematic. Among the numerous WPT mechanisms that currently exist, inductive coupling and ultrasound transmission are frequently employed and utilized for this purpose. However, it's vital to recognize that each of these techniques possesses defined safety limits that impose restrictions on the amount of power that can be transmitted effectively and safely to the implantable devices, thus ensuring patient well-being and health. In light of these ongoing challenges, a novel and sophisticated method has been meticulously developed, showcasing the remarkable ability to enhance the available power within an advanced brain phantom model while systematically adhering to established safety thresholds. This innovative method has undergone thorough testing and extensive validation through both sophisticated simulations and practical real-world measurements, highlighting its significant potential to markedly improve the functionality and reliability of biomedical implantable devices. This approach is further designed to ensure that patient safety remains a top priority throughout the entirety of the process, reinforcing a steadfast commitment to advancing medical technology in a responsible and effective manner. In an era where the interplay between technology and healthcare continues to evolve, the innovation surrounding wireless power transfer and its applications in implantable device technology reflects a breakthrough that promises to enhance the quality of life for countless patients in need of such medical interventions. [2, 144, 145, 146, 147, 148, 149, 150, 151]

7.2 Non-Invasive Treatment Devices

Most therapeutic devices that are developed by Medtronic are primarily designed to be implantable, which means they utilize the human body as a crucial and integral part of their operational system. For example, implanted stimulators, such as pacemakers, rely extensively on specialized implantable electrodes that effectively transmit electrical energy throughout the body. This transmission of energy is absolutely essential for the proper functioning of the devices, allowing them to monitor and regulate vital bodily functions seamlessly. Similarly, devices including cochlear implants and defibrillators adhere to the same fundamental principle of operation, using their innovative design to interact with the body's own systems for significantly enhanced therapeutic outcomes. In contrast, non-invasive therapeutic devices operate externally and are specifically designed to facilitate and enhance patient recovery without the need for surgical procedures. Take, for instance, TENS units, which provide controlled and localized electrical stimulation to specific, targeted areas of the body, helping to alleviate pain and promote healing. These devices are particularly advantageous for patients who prefer non-invasive methods for pain relief and rehabilitation. Additionally, some low-intensity laser units fall into the non-invasive category, utilizing safe light energy rather than electrical energy to achieve therapeutic effects without discomfort. These devices work entirely outside the body while supporting various therapeutic procedures, offering patients a comfortable and less invasive treatment option that ensures greater convenience and ease of use. The specific prosthetic therapeutic unit that is being described utilizes ultrasound energy, which is meticulously configured to a particular frequency and waveform to maximize optimal effectiveness and safety in treatment. This innovative approach promotes healing without the invasive effects of traditional surgical options, providing a modern and advanced methodology in therapy that beautifully combines contemporary technology with biology for improved health outcomes. This ongoing evolution of therapeutic devices highlights the critical role of engineering in healthcare, as manufacturers strive to meet the diverse needs of patients seeking effective and less invasive solutions. [136, 152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 157, 158, 159]

Tissue regeneration and healing are fundamental concerns that hold central importance in countless therapeutic applications across the medical field and its expansive range of practices. In fact, there are an overwhelming number of patents that have been granted for innovative devices specifically designed to incorporate low- to mid-level intensity ultrasound, which is tailored to tackle these crucial objectives effectively. Alongside these ultrasound-based devices, other well-known technologies also utilize LASER and infrared (I.R.) waves for therapeutic purposes, although they tend to be comparatively less utilized in prosthetic therapeutic units when it comes to practical applications. The Emavit prototype distinctly stands out in this landscape as it specifically employs an advanced ultrasound transducer, which features a remarkably small stainless steel diameter that adheres to high standards for optimal tissue conduction. This device connects seamlessly and effectively to a control unit that is housed within a durable ABS case, which is sealed expertly to provide both water and dust resistance, thus ensuring longevity and reliability during use. The thoughtfully designed control interface not only includes a large tactile pushbutton for uncomplicated operation, but it also incorporates an LCD display for clear and concise visual feedback, in addition to a signaling buzzer that alerts the operator to various operational statuses and alerts. Operators have the capability to configure this highly programmable unit so that it can generate a variety of waveforms and frequencies, whether they are static or pulsed, all tailored according to specific therapeutic requirements with precision. The device is meticulously engineered to support frequency ranges that extend from 220 to 500 Hz, enabling it to stimulate tissue effectively at various acquisition times and accommodate diverse workload percentages as needed. The initial applications of this promising technology are primarily focused on treating challenging conditions like mucositis and peri-implantitis, with the aim of accelerating symptom regression while facilitating timely healing following any injury that occurs. Such therapeutic treatments typically span an impressive duration of 8 to 10 sessions, meticulously designed to promote not only effective tissue recovery but also the ease of functional restoration after the healing process is initiated. Ultimately, this innovative approach to therapeutic devices significantly enhances the pathways of recovery and healing, thus representing a pivotal advancement in the medical field [160, 161, 162, 163, 164, 165, 166, 167, 168]

Wearable Health Technologies

The Internet of Things (IoT) has incredibly and dramatically transformed the landscape of healthcare by enabling seamless and efficient data collection from a broad array of sophisticated sensors and advanced devices. This transformative ability significantly supports and enhances the delivery of highly effective health services, optimizing patient care and management practices. Wearable devices, such as fitness trackers and smartwatches, as well as various other innovative health monitoring equipment, have revolutionized numerous aspects in the fields of health and fitness. They empower users to not only actively monitor their health metrics on a continuous basis but also effortlessly share their comprehensive health data with an extensive range of interconnected IoT applications and platforms. This enhanced ability to remotely monitor crucial health parameters provides individuals with immediate insights into their well-being and supports a significant transition towards more preventive, predictive, and participative models of healthcare delivery and management. Consequently, this notable shift helps in effectively reducing the costs associated with medical interventions and emergency care services. Furthermore, with the continually increasing global population of elderly individuals, the importance of noninvasive, real-time tracking of physiological metrics has become more crucial than ever. This is essential not only for effective disease prevention and timely, appropriate treatment but also for ensuring a higher overall quality of life for aging individuals. By leveraging the extensive capabilities of IoT, healthcare can become not only more responsive and personalized but ultimately, more satisfactory for the health outcomes of patients and providers alike. The future of healthcare, enhanced by IoT technologies, promises to bring exciting innovations aimed at improving health standards and ensuring that patients receive the most tailored and efficient care possible [169, 170, 171, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 177]

Medical wearables are innovative, flexible, and lightweight devices that can conveniently be worn on or around the body. Their primary function is to continuously monitor various physiological biomarkers and biophysical signals throughout daily life activities. These devices occupy a critical niche situated between traditional point measurements conducted with medical devices and the extensive continuous monitoring typically found in hospital settings. By utilizing such advanced technology, users are empowered to detect early signs of disease and engage in long-term chronic care monitoring, benefitting both clinical and non-clinical environments. Furthermore, these wearable devices establish a direct connection between individuals and their social and healthcare networks, thereby promoting health equity. This is especially crucial as they extend essential healthcare resources to marginalized and underserved populations. The biomedical engineering community has the potential to play a pivotal role in developing inclusive and accessible wearable health technologies that specifically aim to reduce disparities in health outcomes. This focus is particularly important for vulnerable groups, such as neonates and pregnant individuals, across a variety of resource settings. By prioritizing these advancements, we can make significant strides in health equity and ensure that everyone has access to the tools and support they need for optimal health management [178, 179, 180, 181, 182, 183, 184]

Wearable monitoring devices are currently witnessing an impressive surge in widespread acceptance across various sectors, primarily due to their remarkable ability to collect an extensive and diverse range of crucial physiological data. As technology progresses and innovations continue to emerge, these devices are becoming more sophisticated, allowing for even more detailed and accurate monitoring of the human body. With the global population rapidly ageing and the costs associated with both treatment and diagnostics escalating significantly, it has become increasingly essential to implement continuous monitoring for the effective prediction and prevention of diseases. This proactive approach not only aids in early detection but also plays a vital role in reducing healthcare expenditure over time. Wearable technology, in this context, vastly facilitates long-term and consistent monitoring of vital biodata, which notably includes essential metrics such as heart rate, oxygen saturation levels, respiratory rate, and body temperature, among others. These metrics are critical for identifying potential health issues before they become serious problems, allowing for timely interventions and care. By doing so, these devices significantly enhance individual health outcomes, empowering people to take charge of their health and make informed decisions regarding their well-being. Individuals using these innovative devices can better understand their health patterns and trends, leading to healthier lifestyle choices. Furthermore, they also contribute substantially to the overall efficiency of healthcare systems by providing healthcare professionals with accurate and timely data that can inform decisions and interventions, ultimately leading to better patient care and resource management. As the reliance on data increases, the integration of such technology within healthcare systems is becoming not only advantageous but necessary for advancing public health initiatives [185, 186, 187, 188, 189, 190, 191, 192, 193]

8.1 Fitness Trackers

Fitness trackers have notably transformed the landscape of wearable health technology, capturing the attention of a wide range of users, particularly those who are physically active and individuals who are healthconscious. These enthusiastic users conveniently incorporate a diverse array of wristbands and other accessories into their daily routines, which leads to monitoring fitness health and tracking opportunities. Unsurprisingly, these small, lightweight devices are specifically engineered to automatically gather a wide variety of critical data regarding daily activity levels, including exercise routes, the intensity and duration of workouts, heart rate fluctuations, and even the overall quality of sleep experienced each night. This comprehensive abundance of information proves to be invaluable as it equips consumers with essential insights regarding their lifestyle choices and provides important health guidance, ultimately helping them to maintain or even improve their overall wellbeing in the long run. The increasing interest in these cutting-edge wearable devices can be largely attributed to the prevalent desire among users for real-time feedback. Such immediate feedback can serve to encourage an increase in physical activity levels, along with offering benchmark values for health monitoring that are established, verified, and endorsed by recognized regulatory authorities. The widespread applicability of these innovative technologies is exemplified by their significant penetrative capacity within various sectors. This includes not only the personal fitness domain but also extends far into clinical studies and broad mass market retail, thereby expanding the reach and positive impact of wearable health technologies on society at large. Furthermore, remote patient monitoring has emerged as an especially promising frontier for research within the realm of biomedical devices, capturing the attention of researchers and healthcare providers alike. Recently, several low-cost and patient-centric systems have been developed that are capable of transmitting essential physiological signals directly to healthcare centers via advanced and sophisticated communication networks. This innovative capability significantly supports non-intrusive, continuous, and long-term monitoring of patients' health status over extended periods of time. As a direct consequence of these advancements, new and emerging trends in product development and design now specifically emphasize the precise and effective communication of valuable health data. These evolving trends simultaneously tackle persistent challenges related to size limitations, cost efficiency, and unobtrusiveness, ultimately enhancing the user experience and overall effectiveness of these innovative wearable health technologies that are rapidly becoming integral tools in promoting better health outcomes [194, 195, 196, 197, 198, 199, 186, 200, 201]

8.2 Remote Patient Monitoring

Remote patient monitoring employs advanced wireless devices that have been specifically designed to meticulously record key physiological parameters, while simultaneously transmitting essential health data to healthcare providers. As the elderly population continues to grow steadily and substantially, the scope and importance of remote patient monitoring are on the rise, primarily focusing on alleviating the ever-increasing pressure associated with home-to-hospital transfers. This innovative approach not only aims to significantly reduce hospitalization costs but also facilitates near real-time clinical status updates, enabling healthcare professionals to provide rapid responses to adverse health events. However, it is essential to note that the implementation of such comprehensive systems encounters various challenges, including technical hurdles, medical uncertainties, ethical concerns, and issues related to security. While most commercially available devices are currently designed for intermittent monitoring tasks, there are indeed two crucial advancements that are urgently needed: the continuous measurement of vital parameters and the provision of real-time decision support through advanced and sophisticated classification algorithms. Nonetheless, the clinical reliability of these systems demands further validation to ensure their efficacy in practical settings. Continuous monitoring has the potential to detect life-threatening events more promptly and closely observe changes in a patient's health status, such as the duration of deterioration and exacerbations in their condition. Furthermore, decisionsupport algorithms can play a pivotal role by identifying predictive features and generating novel clinical rules that serve to significantly enhance medical knowledge while improving patient outcomes. Despite the progress made in this area, the development of remote-use-ready devices is still hampered by high costs and financial constraints, which limit the broad adoption of certain transcutaneous measurements and technologies. Nevertheless, these systems continue to enable effective utilization by visiting nurses in community settings and facilitate multi-patient sharing among diverse care teams. The ongoing research and development initiatives are now focusing on targeting improvements in several key areas crucial for the future of remote patient monitoring, including power efficiency, battery capacity, miniaturization, and design customization based on user preferences. All these efforts are aimed at fostering greater user acceptance and engagement with these vital technologies. It is also important to recognize that signal processing issues frequently arise due to physiological signals being contaminated by noise and artifact; this problem is particularly pronounced in out-of-hospital environments where numerous variables can affect signal integrity. Consequently, the development of effective noise removal algorithms that can be implemented either at the sensor level or through external devices is essential to ensure the accuracy of the collected data and maintain the integrity of healthcare delivery. In addition to this, the wireless communication protocols utilized in these devices must guarantee the reliable transmission of crucial health data without any informative loss while also allowing for an intuitive plug-and-play functionality that will ease the user experience significantly. Medical data privacy and security pose significant challenges throughout the entire process of data acquisition, transmission, and storage. These issues remain active areas of inquiry, with various novel algorithmic, architectural, and standards-based solutions currently under investigation and development. The ability to continuously record and subsequently analyze extensive physiological datasets could lead to notable improvements not only in assisted living and patient care but also in rehabilitation programs and athletic performance monitoring. Presented below is a comprehensive and widely tunable remote patient monitoring platform, which is significantly aided by a customizable cloud infrastructure. This platform effectively addresses various challenges associated with data collection, processing, storage, analysis, and visualization throughout the entire transmission chain, significantly enhancing the overall functionality and effectiveness of remote patient monitoring systems while ensuring a positive experience for both patients and healthcare providers alike. [202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207, 179, 208, 209, 210, 2111

Telemedicine and Digital Health

The field of telemedicine has witnessed remarkable and unprecedented growth in recent years, effectively leveraging and harnessing a multitude of technological advancements to significantly narrow the gap that exists between patients and the healthcare infrastructure. Through the extensive and widespread use of the internet, as well as various innovative wireless technologies, telemedicine has made essential medical diagnostics and consultancy not only highly accessible but also surprisingly affordable to a broader and more diverse range of individuals across different demographics and socioeconomic backgrounds. It facilitates numerous aspects of healthcare, such as remote monitoring, comprehensive consultations, image sharing, video calls, and the sharing of medical results. These features significantly alleviate the recurring and often overwhelming burden placed on hospitals and clinics for routine check-ups and essential follow-ups. The diverse and innovative applications of telemedicine in effective health management are indeed far-reaching and expansive, continually spurring significant interest, widespread engagement, and valuable networking opportunities within both the commercial ecosystem and the professional healthcare community alike. As this dynamic sector continues to evolve, its profound impact is likely to resonate deeply throughout the entire healthcare landscape, potentially reshaping and redefining the ways in which vital medical services are delivered and accessed in the foreseeable future. This evolution stands to enhance patient experiences while also driving improvements in efficiency and management practices among healthcare providers [212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217]

Innovations in mobile and information technology have significantly driven the remarkable evolution of telemedicine, changing it from relatively simple online consultations into an expansive and wide array of much more sophisticated and advanced services that effectively blend medical consultancy with comprehensive remote patient monitoring capabilities. Healthcare providers, along with dedicated technology consultants and developers, are focusing extensively on making telemedicine solutions not only accessible but also user-friendly for caregivers and healthcare

professionals. They are introducing an ever-expanding array of wearable devices and sophisticated applications that enable instant and continuous remote monitoring of critical patient physiological parameters, thus ensuring that vital health data is readily available to healthcare professionals at all times, empowering them to make informed decisions swiftly. Despite the increasing adoption of these innovative solutions and the significant progress being made, there are still several remaining challenges that must be diligently identified and tackled in order to encourage further investments and broader adoption across all levels of healthcare infrastructure. This ongoing commitment is essential to ultimately deliver quality healthcare services to people in a timely and cost-effective manner, significantly improving overall patient outcomes and satisfaction in the process. It also plays a vital role in building trust and confidence in telemedicine practices among patients and healthcare providers alike, ensuring that all stakeholders are well-informed and engaged in the evolving landscape of digital health solutions [212, 213, 218, 214, 216, 219, 220, 221]

9.1 Impact on Patient Care

Although biomedical equipment, which includes a wide range of diagnostic and therapeutic devices, accounts for only a small fraction of total expenditures on medical care-specifically around 10%-it plays an exceptionally crucial role in determining and enhancing the overall quality of health services provided to patient populations everywhere. In fact, it is quite noteworthy that expenditures for basic medical supplies such as paper, pencil, and glue can represent as much as 17% of the overall expenses of the National Health Service, showcasing how even seemingly minor costs can add up to create a significant financial impact. Despite their relatively small share of the financial pie, biomedical devices have a significantly profound impact on healthcare outcomes, contributing up to an impressive 80% of the overall quality of health care and medical services received by patients in various settings. The ongoing development and production of innovative biomedical equipment therefore have a tremendous influence on enhancing, improving, and ultimately upgrading the quality of life for the entire population served by health systems around the world. In many different countries, we often find that numerous medical devices are inadequately suited to effectively meet the specific needs of their respective environments demographics. However, with ongoing technological patient advancements, the creation of new, tailored solutions is becoming increasingly possible and essential for healthcare innovation. These new devices offer a valuable and appropriate response to the diverse needs and challenges faced by health care professionals, particularly when it comes to addressing the unique challenges encountered by vulnerable and underserved populations. By focusing on adaptation and ensuring that biomedical equipment aligns with actual health care requirements, we significantly enhance the capability and effectiveness of health services to provide quality care. This intentional adaptation and innovation ensure that all individuals, regardless of their circumstances or backgrounds, can benefit from improved medical interventions, thus supporting better health outcomes for communities as a whole. [22, 222, 21, 223, 7, 29, 28]

Biomedical equipment plays a crucial and indispensable role not only in enhancing the overall quality of healthcare but also in significantly improving its accessibility for diverse groups of patients. It is easy to imagine the dire and distressing situations that arise when essential medical equipment malfunctions or becomes inoperable in a bustling hospital or healthcare center. When a critical device is rendered unavailable, whether due to the lack of necessary spare parts or the failure of a seemingly minor yet essential component, it can lead to serious and significant barriers to healthcare access for patients who are in urgent need of assistance. In extreme and tragic cases, such unavailability can result in dire consequences and may include the heartbreaking loss of patient lives, which underlines the importance of functionality in these devices. The profound impact that biomedical devices have on patient care is a driving force that motivates not only academics but also researchers and industry professionals alike to engage deeply in the continuous development and thoughtful refinement of new medical equipment or to tirelessly pursue improvements on existing technologies. Their dedicated efforts aim to prevent equipment failures, ensure timely access to critical healthcare services, and ultimately support better and more favorable outcomes for patients who are relying on these vital and life-saving resources. The commitment to enhancing biomedical equipment represents a collective responsibility to protect and improve patient health and safety within the healthcare system [224, 20, 225, 226, 227, 228, 229, 230, 231]

9.2 Challenges and Opportunities

Biomedical devices, along with the extensive and broad-ranging field of medical physics, are increasingly recognized as essential components and critical pillars of modern healthcare systems. They significantly contribute to the enhancement of care quality and the improvement of accessibility. This is achieved through remarkable innovations which include advanced medical imaging technologies, sophisticated prosthetics designed for improved

functionality, and a diverse array of wearable health monitoring devices that track various health metrics in real-time. As the global demand for better tools and devices continues to surge, it not only opens up exciting opportunities for significant advancements in the healthcare sector but also introduces a multitude of challenges that must be diligently addressed and effectively overcome. These complex challenges require seamless and effective collaboration among engineers, clinicians, and researchers who are all dedicated to working together to develop innovative solutions that are not only effective and reliable but also ensure that the diverse needs of patients are comprehensively met. By fostering such collaboration, the future of biomedical devices and medical physics holds great promise for addressing current healthcare demands while paving the way for groundbreaking advancements. [21, 6, 232, 7, 233, 234, 9, 16]

Economic air travel was not widely available or commonplace until the transformative and dynamic era of the 1950s, a pivotal time when there were significant and remarkable advances in jet aircraft technology that emerged and reshaped the aviation industry. These groundbreaking developments dramatically increased not just the capacity for passengers on board but also the overall speed of air travel itself, making journeys quicker and more efficient than ever before. The introduction and continual innovation of these cutting-edge jet aircraft allowed a multitude of airlines to accommodate a much larger number of passengers than had ever been thought feasible previously. Simultaneously, these advancements in technology significantly reduced travel times across vast distances, allowing eager and excited travelers to cross extensive regions of the globe in mere hours, rather than enduring days of tedious travel that once characterized long-haul journeys. In recent times, the advent of mobile devices, coupled with the everexpanding capabilities of the internet, have completely revolutionized the way we communicate and share essential information on a truly global scale, altering our everyday lives. A travel or conference agenda, which would have once seemed unimaginably small, limited in scope, and restrictive fifty long years ago, has undergone a remarkable and impressive transformation, expanding in ways that were hardly conceivable. Today, the concept of "worldwide" travel, along with the capability for instantaneous communication, has become an everyday experience for countless individuals hailing from all walks of life, diverse cultures, and varied professions. It is now incredibly common and even routine for people to connect with others around the globe instantly and effortlessly, regardless of geographical barriers. This evolution has significantly enhanced both personal and professional interactions, thereby bridging the distances that once felt insurmountable, enabling a more connected and integrated world where communication knows no bounds and collaboration flourishes across nations. [235, 236, 237, 238, 239, 240, 241, 242]

Technological progress throughout the expansive timeline of human history has not adhered to a predictable or smoothly flowing "innovation curve." Instead, it unfolds through a continuous series of iterative processes that involve growth and development at multiple stages. This ongoing evolution is characterized by significant and often groundbreaking technological breakthroughs that, when they emerge, are gradually embraced and incorporated by societies. These societal adaptations serve as important catalysts for further discoveries and advancements across various domains. The advances that arise not only enhance existing technologies but also pave the way for entirely new applications. This, in turn, enables a broader access to and utilization of various technological innovations that positively impact daily life. When we take a closer examination of the significant period from 1970 to 2020, we can clearly observe the profound and transformative impact that innovation has had on the everyday communication methods and devices that individuals utilize regularly. For example, the analogue technology that once served as the foundational bedrock of the Bell telephone system has gradually given way to a new and advanced era dominated by a diverse array of digital devices. This major transformation encompasses not just the traditional telephones that we once relied upon but also includes a multitude of home appliances such as refrigerators, as well as sophisticated devices like digital cameras. All these items have undergone remarkable and significant transformations as a direct result of the advent and integration of miniaturized logic devices and advanced digital technologies into their designs. Moreover, the dramatic advances we have experienced in computational power over the decades have been effectively complemented by notable reductions in the size and costs of hardware. This dynamic interplay between increasing capability and decreasing physical dimensions has resulted in the birth and subsequent proliferation of portable computers. Such technological innovation enables users to not only enjoy the convenience of advanced technology but also to reap the myriad benefits it offers while on the move or traveling. This extraordinary evolution has reached its pinnacle with the introduction of modern tablets, which brilliantly showcase technology's remarkable ability to fit comfortably in users' pockets. At the same time, these devices offer a vast array of functionalities and conveniences, many of which were truly unimaginable just a few decades ago. [243, 244, 245, 246, 247, 248, 249, 250]

Biomedical devices have undergone a truly remarkable transformation as a direct result of the ongoing advancements in technology and design. The simple stethoscope of the eighteenth century, which was originally nothing more than a rolled-up piece of paper, has now evolved into a wide array of sophisticated instruments that offer invaluable insights into human health and medical conditions. Today's contemporary systems encompass highly advanced wearable health trackers that monitor various vital signs in realtime, state-of-the-art imaging and radiation devices that provide detailed visualizations of internal structures, and even innovative artificial organs constructed to replicate or enhance essential bodily functions. The seamless integration of digital computation and robust network connectivity has significantly contributed to the continued evolution of diagnostic and therapeutic tools, enabling an unprecedented level of precision and efficiency in healthcare practices. Furthermore, the surge in increased financial resources and the implementation of innovative collaborative development strategies have effectively positioned the pursuit of medical innovation as a crucial priority within the healthcare landscape. Numerous reports and studies have consistently confirmed a strong desire for focused development that specifically targets unmet healthcare needs, emphasizing the urgent necessity for viable solutions that can bridge existing gaps in the current healthcare system. This new wave of biomedical devices and technologies holds immense promise for not only improving patient outcomes but also for advancing public health initiatives across diverse populations and communities globally. As we continue to embrace these advancements, the future of healthcare appears increasingly bright and full of potential [22, 223, 21, 251, 252, 253, 254].

Innovation distinctly stands out as a concept that differs fundamentally from the traditional notion of invention. Thomson, who holds the esteemed and influential position of senior vice president of medical services at a prominent and leading technological firm, expressed an insightful perspective when he remarked, "Scientists are typically fascinated by new inventions. However, the true measure of success lies in how many individuals actually benefit from the innovation." This powerful statement underscores the vital role that effectiveness plays in the expansive realm of innovation. Successful innovations are often characterized in descriptions that clearly define them as "surprising, imaginative creations, or can be perceived as new configurations of older elements." The astonishing impact that innovation can bring about is truly profound, as it has the remarkable power to transform not only the way we live our daily lives but also how we interact with one another in society. This transformative nature distinctly

highlights its immense importance in the ongoing and ever-evolving journey of human advancement and societal progress. [255, 256, 257, 258, 259, 260, 261]

Consequently, various technical reforms significantly alter devices and technologies, frequently leading to the introduction of a multitude of unforeseen challenges that can substantially affect their overall effectiveness and functionality. Equipment requirements address a wide range of vital concerns which include but are not limited to patient safety, the proven efficacy of treatment methods, and the thorough verification of claims that are made by manufacturers regarding their products. The ability to successfully bring new devices to the market synthesizes a variety of applicable advances in innovation with essential economic cost considerations, while also accommodating local regulatory structures and incorporating crucial ethical reflection. Development efforts may be restricted, delayed, or altogether abandoned when one particular factor exceeds a specified threshold, which can lead to a complete halt in progress, significantly impacting the advancement of medical technology. This scenario can arise even though the technology itself is available and fully ready for deployment in real-world applications, illustrating the complex interplay of various factors and challenges involved in the development and approval process that must be navigated effectively in order to achieve success. Each step in this intricate process requires careful consideration and collaboration among stakeholders to ensure that new devices not only meet safety and efficacy standards but also adapt to the evolving landscape of healthcare needs and regulatory environments. $^{[262,\,263,\,264,\,265,\,266,\,267,\,268]}$

Artificial Intelligence in Healthcare

Artificial intelligence (AI) is drastically reshaping the landscape of healthcare delivery in numerous and diverse ways that are increasingly significant in today's world. Advanced machine-learning techniques, which include both supervised and unsupervised methods, are now being applied to analyze vast amounts of data for various tasks such as clustering, classification, and prediction in more sophisticated manners. One of the significant challenges in integrating these advanced AI systems into healthcare is known as the "black box" phenomenon: the complex and opaque nature of certain algorithms makes it exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to trace and fully understand the reasoning behind AI-generated diagnoses and conclusions. This inherent complexity complicates the verification of decisions and can, unfortunately, undermine clinician confidence, trust, and reliance on the results provided by these innovative technologies. Furthermore, the deployment of AI systems carries a range of inherent risks that include potential workflow disruptions, harmful automation bias, and misalignments with the strategic objectives of healthcare providers, all of which can hinder the widespread adoption and effective implementation of these systems within various healthcare settings. To counteract some of these significant risks, the development of interpretable and transparent models is essential; these models can provide clearer and more understandable insights and explanations for their decisions, leading to a better understanding among users. Ongoing research into more explainable techniques is absolutely crucial to fostering the necessary trust and confidence in AI systems among healthcare professionals and patients alike. As the widespread adoption of AI continues to evolve and expand, it is poised to profoundly change clinical practices and optimize operational workflows across healthcare environments, leading to improved patient outcomes. AI is not merely a concept confined to speculative fiction; it is now a pervasive and interconnected digital healthcare innovation set to transform healthcare systems across the globe in remarkable ways. In order to manage this significant transformation effectively and ensure its success, healthcare providers must focus on developing proactive strategies and robust organizational processes that will support these advancements. Preparing adequately is vital; with the right approach, healthcare organizations can position themselves not only to adapt successfully to these transformative changes but also to take a leadership role in this rapidly evolving field, rather than merely following the trends set by others in the industry. As AI technology becomes increasingly integral to healthcare delivery and decision-making processes, it is essential that physicians enhance their understanding of critical epidemiological principles by also developing advanced statistical expertise. This expanded knowledge will enable them to communicate AI-generated probabilities, analytics, and statistics effectively to patients in a clear and approachable manner, ensuring that patients are well-informed and can engage actively in shared decision-making concerning their health and care [269, 270, 271, 272, 273, 274, 275, 276].

10.1 Machine Learning Applications

Machine-learning techniques have become increasingly effective predictive and analytic tools that are being utilized across a remarkably broad range of fields and disciplines today, making significant impacts in various sectors. The remarkable ability of many advanced machine-learning algorithms-whether they rely on complex neural networks, support-vector machines, decision trees, or other innovative models-to extract intricate patterns and relationships that are often hidden within vast amounts of large datasets is particularly well suited for ongoing improvements in healthcare delivery systems and cutting-edge medical research. These advancements lead to groundbreaking outcomes and discoveries that can transform the landscape of medical science. This is especially vital for efforts aimed at developing new computational tools that can significantly assist clinicians, researchers, and other healthcare providers in their daily tasks and decisionmaking processes. These sophisticated tools ultimately contribute to more efficient and effective care, ensuring that patients receive the best possible treatment options in a timely manner. Machine-learning frameworks provide highly adaptable and flexible approaches to the nuanced interpretation and comprehensive analysis of diagnostic tests and medical images. This includes challenging radiological images, which can often be quite difficult for medical professionals to analyze on their own, and may require additional specialized means that go beyond extensive training and expertise. These notable advancements in machine learning technologies permit enhanced decision-making capabilities, enabling healthcare providers to make informed choices based entirely on data-driven insights, thereby steadily improving patient outcomes in a multitude of healthcare contexts and scenarios. In this way, the integration of advanced technologies into medical practice paves the way for a future where technology and medicine synergistically work hand in hand. This promising collaboration fosters innovation and progress, ultimately creating a more prosperous and effective healthcare landscape that benefits both patients and providers alike, nurturing a healthier society overall. [277, 278, 279, 280, 281, 282, 283, 284, 285]

The significance of these remarkable improvements is greatly highlighted by the extensive clinical relevance demonstrated by radiological images in a myriad of healthcare settings, which are diverse and multifaceted. Machine-learning models exhibit a remarkable capability to be effectively trained to accurately identify specific features, describe intricate details, and interpret complex relationships that exist within and across such vast and comprehensive datasets. This ultimately yields a range of computational services that can be distinctly classified under the category of Software as a Medical Device (SaMD). Under this ever-expanding designation, an extensive array of narrow-scope image analysis tools can be seamlessly integrated into larger, multi-layered predictive architectures. These sophisticated structures provide vital and higher-level support for clinicians as they diligently make critical decisions pertaining to patient care and treatment options. Despite the substantial number of innovative machine-learning tools that are currently being developed and introduced to the market, the regulatory foundations essential for a comprehensive and successful rollout of medical-device applications continue to be in the early stages of development. Numerous pressing questions still remain to be thoroughly addressed, including those significant concerns associated with potential biases that might exist in training sets, the thorough assessment of performance metrics, and crucial factors such as explainability and interpretability of the insights generated. Additionally, the careful selection and composition of explanatory variables that come together to form effective training datasets cannot be overlooked. In addition, important issues surrounding reliability, robustness, and portability must also be thoroughly investigated and understood. For all of these crucial topics, the emergence of SaMD presents promising avenues for further development and exploration. These advancements can significantly serve to accelerate innovation within healthcare systems while simultaneously enhancing the overall efficacy and quality of clinical care delivery across the globe. As the industry continues to evolve, the potential for SaMD to revolutionize healthcare processes and considerably improve outcomes for patients is immense, paving the way for a promising future where technology plays an even more pivotal and transformative role in shaping the landscape of healthcare. [286, 287, 288, 289, 290, 291, 292, 293]

10.2 Ethical Considerations

Ethical considerations are absolutely fundamental to the advancement and successful trajectory of healthcare innovation. The paramount importance of patient safety, alongside the unwavering necessity for strict adherence to regulatory standards, persistently dictate the overarching priorities of organizations involved in the medical profession. Innovations that arise within the specialized and highly technical fields of medical physics and biomedical devices are not only intended to push the boundaries of technology, but are also broadly aligned with a profound desire to significantly improve patient outcomes while steadfastly maintaining ethical integrity. The existence of extensive regulatory frameworks meticulously oversees every facet of the production, design, and commercialisation of new biomedical devices across the UK. These comprehensive and highly detailed guidelines serve not only to reinforce the ethical obligation that healthcare providers have, but also to ensure that the new technologies genuinely benefit patients in meaningful ways and seamlessly integrate with essential aspects of individuality, comfort, and dignity. This approach thereby actively upholds the highest standards of care, respect, and ethical consideration for all individuals, resonating deeply within the core values of modern healthcare [294, 295, 296, 297, 298, 299, 300, 301, 302]

The design, development, and implementation of new technologies, however, inevitably pose considerable and significant challenges that cannot be overlooked or dismissed lightly. These pressing issues currently attract considerable prominence amid the increasingly AI-focused and oriented approach across the health sector, where the integration of advanced technologies is both welcomed and scrutinized. Looking ahead into the future, various experts remain circumspect and cautious concerning the overall ability of existing systems and structures to adequately adapt to the rapid and often unpredictable changes taking place. Some accounts consequently proffer the continued integration of medical physics alongside biomedical devices as a central feature of future healthcare innovation; however, they nonetheless advocate for a pragmatic and cautious perspective. This is especially pertinent, given the extended ethical, moral, and social implications that may arise as a result of these advancements in technology and its application in medical fields. As these innovations unfold, it becomes imperative to engage in extensive discussions regarding their impact on patient care, accessibility, and the overall effectiveness of healthcare delivery in a changing world. [303, 113, 22, 304, 305, 306, 307]

Nanotechnology in Medicine

Nanotechnology has firmly established itself as a pivotal and fundamental technology across numerous scientific and technological domains, particularly in the increasingly critical field of biomedical science. When observed at the remarkably small nanoscale, which ranges from 1 to just 100 materials exhibit distinct characteristics significantly from those of their bulk or macroscopic counterparts. This remarkable and unique difference in properties facilitates an array of innovative capabilities that are especially advantageous for numerous biomedical applications. Specifically, the intriguing biomedical physics of nanomaterials has yielded groundbreaking opportunities for the creation of entirely new diagnostic and therapeutic technologies, effectively addressing the ever-evolving demands and challenges of modern healthcare systems. This advancement underscores the growing importance of actively exploring and harnessing the vast potential of nanotechnology to craft effective solutions that can significantly enhance patient care and improve health outcomes in a variety of medical contexts. The potential impact of nanotechnology extends beyond just treatment and diagnostics, as it also involves significant aspects of drug delivery and targeted therapies, which are crucial for effectively treating complex diseases. By investing research efforts into understanding and applying nanotechnology, we can pave the way for transformative changes that can redefine future medical practices and patient experiences. [308, 309, 310, 311, 312, 313]

Due to their exceptionally large surface area, remarkable free surface charge, and their unique optical and photothermal properties, nanomaterials are particularly adept at accumulating specific molecules such as drugs and protective elements essential for various applications. When these innovative nanomaterials are intelligently and carefully functionalized with biomolecules, they exhibit the remarkable ability to provide highly selective action on designated biological targets within the human body. Consequently, nanoparticles and nanocarriers that encapsulate vital drugs are now widely recognized as some of the most advanced, promising, and transformative technologies available for achieving targeted delivery in a

multitude of medical applications. The encapsulation process not only offers vital chemical protection for the enclosed substances but also greatly facilitates specific cell or tissue delivery, which significantly enhances overall pharmaceutical efficacy while concurrently reducing the potential for unwanted side effects, a major concern in traditional drug delivery methods. Recent studies have indicated that the toxicity levels of numerous compounds can undergo substantial and meaningful reduction when employing this innovative encapsulation method. Furthermore, remarkable capability for selective targeting can be further enhanced through meticulous chemical functionalization of surfaces, allowing for tailored interactions with biological systems. Parallel experiments conducted in this exciting field demonstrate that even high degradation rates of these specialized nanoparticles do not impede their ability to transport effective compounds, thereby suggesting that nanoparticles could serve as excellent and highly efficient vectors for the delivery of certain therapeutic compounds in advanced therapeutic applications. [314, 315, 316, 317, 318, 319, 320]

11.1 Drug Delivery Systems

Drug delivery systems are intricately designed to enhance the overall effectiveness of medications by meticulously regulating the rate and timing associated with the release of drugs into the human body. Among the various available systems, microscale devices truly stand out; these remarkable technologies include not only liquid jet injectors and powder injectors but also innovative microneedles and advanced techniques like thermal microablation. These cutting-edge devices offer significant advantages, notably a substantial reduction in pain and a considerable decrease in needle phobia compared to the traditional hypodermic injections that many individuals find quite daunting and uncomfortable. Furthermore, implantable delivery devices have been effectively utilized across a multitude of different sites within the body. This includes complex and challenging areas like the brain, demonstrating their remarkable versatility and crucial importance in the realm of modern medicine. Additionally, endoluminal systems, which encompass a variety of technologies such as drug-eluting stents and drugcoated balloons, have proven to be pivotal in the administration of high local concentrations of antiproliferative agents. These agents effectively work to reduce the incidence of restenosis, which is the re-narrowing of blood vessels. However, there are certain constraints to their efficacy, primarily due to limited drug transfer mechanisms and inadequate retention of the drug within the target areas. The recent advent of endoscopic injection techniques has brought about a substantial revolution in delivering local therapies within the intricate gastrointestinal tract, with applications that span across several vital medical needs. These include hemostasis, variceal ablation, inflammation control, and biologic delivery, showcasing the wide range of possibilities in this area. A particularly interesting and groundbreaking development involves a kirigami-based stent platform that innovatively deposits drug depots in a circumferential and strategic manner within both gastrointestinal and vascular tissues. This technology offers functionality across various scales and complexity levels, adding to its appeal. Despite these exciting advancements, conventional delivery devices still face notable challenges when it comes to accessing hard-to-reach, curved anatomical areas within the body. Such limitations can lead to discomfort for patients, primarily due to the slow, one-time release mechanism that is typically triggered by internal air pressure during the delivery process. Lastly, a remarkable cutting-edge 3D electroporation platform has recently been introduced into the medical field, promoting high-throughput intracellular delivery of macromolecules. This technology significantly enhances various cell manipulation techniques and holds great potential for future cancer therapies. Meanwhile, innovative multimicrochannel microneedle arrays have emerged as highly efficient tools for achieving safe, effective, and uniform intracellular delivery. This development represents a significant leap forward in the field of drug delivery innovation and application, setting new standards for how therapies can be administered in a safe and effective manner [321, 322, 323, 324, 325, 326, 327, 328]

Remotely triggered pulsatile delivery systems represent an exceptionally significant leap forward in the ever-evolving field of drug delivery, showcasing the most advanced technologies that facilitate an on-demand, precisely controlled release of drugs as required by patients. This remarkable capability not only greatly enhances therapeutic efficacy but also concurrently minimizes the potential toxicity issues that patients might face compared to traditional methods of drug administration. These cutting-edge systems have been ingeniously designed with a plethora of technologies that can respond to a variety of stimuli including light, ultrasound, magnetic fields, electrical stimulation, and even wireless power, making them truly innovative. This multifunctionality enables unparalleled versatility in not just controlling the precise dosage but also the optimal timing of medication release while tailoring treatment to meet the unique needs of each individual patient effectively. Particularly noteworthy is the oral route of drug administration, which continues to dominate as the preferred method among patients and healthcare providers predominantly due to its inherent convenience, effectiveness, and simplicity of use. In response to this evident preference among patients, there has been a significant increase in the robust development of modified-release formulations that are specifically engineered to achieve effective controlled delivery of medications. This ongoing progression intends to significantly enhance patient compliance and adherence to prescribed regimens, ultimately leading to substantially improved health outcomes and overall well-being for patients. Moreover, pulsatile delivery systems play an absolutely indispensable role in ensuring that the right medication is administered at precisely the right time and at the most appropriate site within the body for optimal therapeutic effect. This targeted approach not only facilitates secure and efficient therapeutic outcomes but also serves to help in the effective management of complex treatment scenarios that require intricate coordination of various medications. As this revolutionary technology continues to evolve further, it holds remarkable potential to genuinely revolutionize the entire landscape of drug delivery. The innovations being realized in this cutting-edge field promise to deliver superior management of chronic diseases and substantially optimize treatment protocols, thereby transforming patient care and significantly improving quality of life across diverse patient populations [329, 330, 331, 332, 333, 334, 335]

11.2 Diagnostics and Imaging

Imaging plays a truly crucial and indispensable role in contemporary healthcare, as it not only aids in the accurate and timely diagnosis of various pathologies but also significantly assists in the meticulous planning of clinical treatments, various surgical procedures, and the ongoing and detailed monitoring of patients' responses to diverse therapies. The diverse and everevolving field of medical imaging encompasses an extensive range of vital modalities that are instrumental in significantly enhancing patient care across multiple healthcare settings. This includes well-known techniques such as Xray, Computed Tomography (CT), Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI), Nuclear Imaging, and Ultrasound, each of which has its own specific applications and benefits. Additionally, it involves advanced methods like Electrical Impedance Tomography (EIT) and other Emerging Technologies specifically designed for in vivo imaging assessments. Each of these modalities leverages the unique physical properties of different waves and signals to meticulously construct exceptionally detailed images and gather essential, invaluable data regarding the organs and tissues within the human body. This detailed imaging process ultimately contributes to more effective and tailored healthcare outcomes, helping medical professionals make wellinformed decisions and optimize treatment approaches for all patients involved [228, 107, 336, 231, 337]

Imaging plays an absolutely critical and indispensable role in the delivery of healthcare services, acting as the primary diagnostic tool within a significant number of Clinical Care Pathways (CCPs) that guide patient management and treatment decisions. Different imaging techniques, such as X-ray, CT, MRI, and Ultrasound, collectively account for six out of the top ten investigations that are frequently conducted in medical settings where accurate diagnosis is essential for effective treatment planning. Furthermore, these imaging modalities represent all of the eight most costly investigations when assessed in terms of consumables as well as the capital depreciation involved in maintaining this advanced technology. These imaging modalities constitute a substantial portion—between 30 and 50%—of the total diagnostic expenditure occurring within a single NHS Board, highlighting their importance in the overall financial planning of healthcare delivery. Additionally, imaging stands out as a fundamental component for many essential national screening programmes, which include those for breast, bowel, lungs, cervical health, and comprehensive bone density assessments. Given the increasing demand for diagnostic services across various healthcare sectors, it is crucial that diagnostic capacity be expanded. This enhancement of capacity and resources is now recognized as a national priority aimed at improving both the timeliness and appropriateness of patient treatment across the healthcare system, thus ensuring that patients receive the highest standard of care in a timely manner [97, 338, 339, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344, 345]

Over the past three decades, there have been significant and remarkable advances made in the multidisciplinary fields of photonics, physics, chemistry, and computing, which have profoundly driven a plethora of innovations in the realm of biomedical imaging technologies. These groundbreaking advancements have played a crucial and indispensable role in the development and refinement of novel contrast agents, meticulously designed antibodies, and cutting-edge molecular biology approaches and techniques. As a direct result of these expansive advancements, these sophisticated imaging technologies have evolved into essential tools for the provision of effective healthcare services, the execution of groundbreaking biomedical research, and the continuous advancement of personalized medicine strategies tailored to individual patient needs. Modern biomedical imaging capabilities now facilitate not only the comprehensive screening of patients but also do so in a non-invasive manner which is highly beneficial, thereby promoting informed decision-making processes during various treatment regimens. Furthermore, these imaging technologies play an integral and pivotal role in the assessment of a patient's response to ongoing treatment, the early detection of any potential recurrence of disease, and they guide clinicians during minimally invasive interventions to ensure optimal outcomes. Moreover, imaging technologies are positioned at the heart of the ongoing digital transformation that is being witnessed within the fields of medicine and healthcare. This transformation is enabling the swift and efficient adoption of a range of advanced techniques and methodologies, including cutting-edge developments in Artificial Intelligence and Deep Learning. As these remarkable technologies continue to evolve and advance, their seamless integration into clinical practice holds tremendous promise for enhancing patient outcomes significantly while streamlining healthcare delivery even further in the coming years. [346, 347, 348, 349, 106, 350, 109, 351, 352]

Robotics in Surgery

Minimally invasive surgical techniques have led to truly remarkable advancements in the field of medical robotic systems, effectively broadening their range of applications and enhancing the diverse configurations in technology. Since the 1990s, various platforms have emerged, such as the da Vinci Surgical System and the ZEUS Robotic Surgical System, which serve as notable illustrations of the ongoing progression and evolution within the field of surgical robotics. The da Vinci system, in particular, allows highly skilled surgeons to perform intricate operations through exceptionally small incisions while utilizing natural wrist movements that are a key aspect of this innovative approach, which in turn provides up to seven degrees of freedom. This design offers significantly enhanced dexterity when compared to traditional laparoscopy methods, facilitating complex procedures with greater precision. These groundbreaking technological advancements are not only instrumental in efficiently facilitating intricate surgical procedures but also contribute to notably shorter recovery times for patients as well as more consistent and improved clinical outcomes overall. Although medical robotic systems must prioritize robustness and safety-especially in challenging scenarios where they might be manipulating invasive tools in close proximity to both patients and medical staff-ongoing innovations continue to emphasize the critical integration of cutting-edge sensors and advanced actuators. This integration aims to further augment and enhance surgical instruments and is indicative of a broader shift towards smarter, more adaptable systems that are thoughtfully designed to align seamlessly with clinical workflows while adhering to rigorous safety standards. As the field progresses, these developments hold immense potential for redefining the standards of surgical practice and improving patient care substantially [353, 354, 355, 356, 357, 358, 359, 360, 361, 362, 363]

12.1 Types of Surgical Robots

Surgical robots represent a diverse array of advanced robotic devices meticulously designed to assist surgeons during various operations, which can manifest as either physically automated machines or as instruments operated remotely through teleoperation. While humanoid robots specifically tailored for general surgical practice have not yet been fully developed or realized, there has been significant progress with specialized robotic systems that support specific manual tasks within clearly defined medical areas. The first category of these robotic systems encompasses semi-active robots, which are defined by their capacity to hold, guide, or position surgical instruments with a high degree of accuracy. A notable example from this category is the PUMA 560 robotic system, which is adept at installing a biopsy or delivering localized therapy under the guidance of computed tomography. This same approach, relying on precision imaging, also permits the accurate positioning and orientation of a radio-frequency ablation needle under scanner control, enhancing the safety and efficacy of the procedure. Furthermore, another semi-active device is designed to precisely guide a drill for performing a trephine hole in the skull, a critical task during neurosurgery. Additionally, the surgical light admittance system plays a vital role by adapting the position and intensity of light to meet the specific needs of operations, allowing for adjustments while the robot remains engaged and integrated within a reactive mode. The second category features teleoperated robots, which are controlled remotely by the surgeon with the aid of a dedicated console system and visual feedback mechanisms. Remarkably, these systems exhibit a communication delay of less than 0.1 seconds, providing surgeons with vital visual and force cues that yield detailed, accurate, and precise information about the operational field. A multitude of sophisticated instruments and tools become available at the surgeon's endeffectors, facilitating complex surgical procedures that encompass videoassisted surgery, transoral surgery, and various neurosurgical applications. The most predominant system within this category is the da Vinci surgical system, which is notable for its intuitive eight degrees of freedom forceps, complemented by a high-definition stereoscopic vision system, all of which enable straightforward and efficient control of a broad range of surgical tools. The last category is characterized by ongoing research efforts focused on miniaturized robots that can be carefully introduced into the human body through its vessels or natural orifices. This innovative approach aims to perform operations that would otherwise be inaccessible to traditional surgical methods or to conduct minimally invasive biopsies. Such miniature devices necessitate the development of various modules that cater to multiple functionalities, including guidance, diagnosis, therapy, or biopsy procedures. It is noteworthy that medical-surgical assistance, as we've described concerning the capabilities and functionalities of teleoperated robots, serves as a pivotal reference point for envisioning the utility and application of other types of robotic systems within the medical field [354, 364, 365, 366, 367, 368, 369]

12.2 Future Directions

Biomedical devices and medical physics serve as vital enablers in the quest to address pressing challenges within the healthcare sector, playing a key role in driving forward innovation aimed at improving health qualifications while simultaneously making healthcare services increasingly accessible and cost-effective for everyone. The ongoing development of advanced materials and cutting-edge technologies, including the emergence of smart materials and the utilization of micro- and nanorobots, has created an environment ripe for multifaceted innovation that spans various fields. Innovations are meticulously explored throughout the entire research lifecycle, starting from the initial concept and design phases, advancing through rigorous development and production processes, and ultimately leading to successful market entry. It is essential to recognize that beyond mere technical progress, the fields of medical devices and medical physics must also be dedicated to advancing societal well-being through ethical development and conscientious application of these technologies. As we look to the future, research may proceed along several promising avenues that continue to enhance healthcare delivery and patient outcomes [136, 303, 370, 22, 11]

First, as we look ahead, we anticipate that further advancements will go well beyond the boundaries of traditional production engineering. This extension includes specialized fields such as advanced simulation innovative design strategies, comprehensive methodologies, in-depth failure analysis, and the meticulous generation of prototypes. These advancements will significantly aid in the process of pinpointing the critical factors that contribute to the creation of products that are not only practical and effective but also economically viable in today's competitive market landscape. Second, the integration of open-innovation approaches serves to empower organizations to harness and incorporate invaluable external knowledge and insights. This strategic incorporation not only fosters the development of fresh and inventive ideas but also enriches the overall innovation ecosystem through meaningful collaboration and partnerships. Such interactions act as a vital complement to and enhancement of existing in-house capabilities, driving further success in innovation. Third, the pressing global challenges we collectively face today are numerous and complex, including accelerated aging of populations, rapid urbanization of cities, pronounced environmental changes, serious energy security concerns, urgent food security issues, and the persistent struggle against poverty that continues to plague many parts of the world. These multifaceted issues undoubtedly call for pragmatic and real-world solutions that are effective, sustainable, and capable of addressing the intricate needs of diverse communities. Moreover, systems integration innovation has the potential to play a critical role in connecting a diverse array of information. It enables large-scale, multi-dimensional, and multi-disciplinary insights related to Earth's systems alongside the societal impacts that these systems exert, both on a global scale and within local communities. By harnessing such integration, we significantly enhance our ability to communicate scientific knowledge effectively, as well as societal relevance. This process helps bridge the existing gap between foundational research conducted in laboratories and the real-world needs and understanding of policymakers, stakeholders, and the public at large. [371, 372, 373, 374, 375, 376]

Biomaterials and Tissue Engineering

Biomaterials and tissue engineering are critically important in the ongoing development of a wide range of new biomedical devices that are transforming healthcare. As scientific advances in molecular biology, biomolecular science, and materials science continue to unfold, a variety of new polymers, metals, and ceramics are being meticulously designed and engineered to surpass the functional and structural limitations inherent in existing implantable devices. These innovative materials not only provide a foundational framework for tissue-engineered constructs but also significantly encourage and promote the formation of new, healthy tissue. This progress is contributing immensely to the fields of regenerative medicine and prostheses, particularly in applications related to vascular repair, skin restoration, and musculoskeletal health. The integration of these new biomaterials is revolutionizing patient care and improving outcomes in medical treatments across various disciplines. [377, 378]

13.1 Types of Biomaterials

Biomedical systems-grade materials include those that come into contact with body fluids, cells, tissues, or organs within medical products or devices. Such materials may be metals, alloys, ceramics, polymers, composites, or natural substances. The choice depends on required physical, chemical, and biological properties. An artificially created replacement-to support or improve tissues or functions-is termed a biomaterial [377].

Biomaterials can be classified as either natural or synthetic substances, including a range of materials such as various polymers or metals, that are specifically engineered for utilization within living tissue as integral components of medical devices or implants. These materials are designed with particular properties that facilitate contact with human tissue without triggering adverse immune responses, thus ensuring better compatibility with the host environment. The biomaterials utilized for the fabrication of implants are not just simple constructs; they serve as sophisticated devices or critical components aimed at diagnosis, cure, or prevention of health issues. Importantly, these biomaterials operate without relying primarily on

chemical action or metabolization for achieving their intended purpose. Their primary function is to replace damaged tissues, and they prominently feature in various applications including disposable medical devices, diagnostic kits, and therapeutic modalities. Various implantable devices like pacemakers, heart valves, stents, and orthopedic implants have shown remarkable efficacy in significantly extending overall life expectancy for many patients. Ongoing research and developments within the field continue to target improvements for better treatment strategies for life-threatening diseases. Additionally, there have been notable advances in diagnostic imaging technologies, such as MRI and ultrasound, which now enable non-invasive detection of abnormalities and facilitate early intervention in disease treatment, improving patient outcomes substantially. [379, 380, 381, 382]

13.2 Applications in Regenerative Medicine

Regenerative medicine is an emerging and rapidly evolving field aiming to treat various types of injury, disease, and medical conditions by harnessing the body's remarkable capacity for regeneration and self-repair. This innovative area of healthcare focuses on developing effective regenerative strategies that emphasize the replacement or regeneration of human cells, tissues, and organs, with the ultimate goal of restoring normal physiological function. Numerous therapeutic approaches in this domain rely heavily on the application of stem cells, which can be utilized in three distinctive and impactful ways: first, through the direct injection of stem cells into the damaged or affected tissue; second, via immunomodulation therapy that leverages the beneficial molecules secreted by stem cells following their injection; and finally, through the exciting field of tissue engineering to grow complex organs and tissues outside the human body by utilizing various biomaterials. The ongoing progress and advancements in regenerative medicine significantly depend on understanding and unlocking the mechanisms by which we can stimulate, enhance, or even replace the innate regenerative capabilities that are inherent to the human body, thus potentially revolutionizing the approaches to healing and recovery in modern medicine. [383, 384, 385, 386]

Tissue Engineering epitomises the field of regenerative medicine by specifically focusing on the in vitro regeneration of various diseased tissues and organs, with the ultimate goal of providing innovative medical tools that will significantly alter and enhance medical practice. Several recent and notable projects exemplify this ambitious aim. A natural biomaterial designed specifically for soft tissue oral defects has been successfully developed and tested. Additionally, an advanced in vitro bioreactor system

has been established to effectively simulate the complex healing environment and to serve as a powerful tool for the comprehensive assessment of various implant materials that are intended for use in oral tissue regeneration procedures. Furthermore, a cutting-edge tissueengineered approach for the regeneration of intervertebral discs is based on the three-dimensional culture of autologous human intervertebral disc cells into a specialized polyurethane-fibrin composite. This innovative system allows the cells to proliferate extensively and differentiate in three dimensions, leading to an increase in native tissue-associated extracellular matrix markers. In another significant advancement, an automated platform has been developed to standardize the intricate cell culture technology employed in tissue engineering, which aims to improve biosafety, enhance reproducibility, and reduce overall costs. This remarkable development represents a crucial step forward towards the practical clinical application of tissue engineering techniques and technologies in modern medicine. [387, 388, 389, 390, 391]

Challenges in Biomedical Device Development

The development of any biomedical device presents numerous and complex challenges at virtually every step of the entire process. The innovative and often groundbreaking ideas that are frequently encountered within an academic or research setting are not always easily transferable to the rapid industrialization and mass production demands that are characteristic of the industry. To navigate this transition effectively, additional rigorous testing, specialized fabrication techniques, and extensive clinical studies are often necessary to translate research findings into tangible products that can ultimately benefit patients in real-world settings. Once the device is successfully in hand and ready for use, researchers and developers may face significant hurdles in determining the most appropriate marketing channels or in finding the interested parties that would be willing and able to support the device's launch into the market. Furthermore, the regulatory constraints and ethical considerations that are related to the introduction of new medical devices into the market can significantly complicate the rapid entry that many innovators seek for their groundbreaking technologies. It is crucial for innovators to understand these barriers thoroughly and develop strategies that can help them navigate the complex landscape of medical device development and commercialization efficiently. [22, 21, 392, 234, 393]

Numerous innovative concepts often encounter significant roadblocks and face a myriad of challenges that effectively impede their forward momentum. Only a small fraction of these concepts manages to successfully transition and ultimately advance to the marketplace. Consequently, an overwhelming multitude of promising technologies remains dormant, collecting dust on laboratory shelves or can be discovered trapped within expansive and extensive worldwide patent directories. These innovations are often hindered by severe technical difficulties or daunting funding gaps that appear insurmountable to a great many individuals and organizations. The complex process of innovation typically unfolds in a slow, meticulous, and incremental manner, evolving progressively over time and almost never adhering to a simple, straightforward linear trajectory. Instead, it is almost always fraught with unforeseen obstacles, unexpected complications, and

numerous intricacies that demand ongoing adaptation and continual reevaluation. Moreover, relentless reassessment of both approaches and strategies becomes necessary at every stage along this intricate path. This complicated dynamic creates a challenging landscape in which the journey from concept to market transforms into an exceptionally arduous undertaking for countless enterprises and inventors who are driven to bring their visionary ideas to fruition. The myriad of challenges they face can often act as substantial deterrents, dissuading even the most passionate and determined innovators from pursuing their goals. Thus, it becomes vital for them to cultivate resilience, persistence, and a flexible mindset as they navigate through this difficult terrain, equipping themselves with the necessary tools to confront and surmount the trials they are likely to encounter along the way. [46, 394, 395, 396, 397, 398, 399]

In a global context, a significant number of developing countries grapple with a complex and multifaceted array of persistent and recurring problems when it comes to effectively acquiring suitable medical devices. These devices are absolutely essential for supporting and enhancing health services in a comprehensive manner that is conducive to improved public health outcomes. The new technologies that are introduced into low- and middleincome countries often seem to be not only inappropriate but also misaligned with the real and pressing needs of the local populations they are intended to serve. This misalignment raises considerable concern, particularly given the various limitations imposed by the largely inadequate infrastructure and the scarce resources that are frequently available in these regions. As a direct consequence, the pursuit of technology that is not only appropriate but also demonstrably applicable and effective becomes increasingly essential and urgent in today's healthcare landscape. This pursuit is of utmost importance for meaningfully addressing the pressing and complex challenges that these countries face in the healthcare sector, ensuring improved health outcomes for their diverse populations, and ultimately striving to create a more robust healthcare system overall. Such a system must effectively cater to and meet the diverse needs and aspirations of all individuals within those communities, thereby promoting equity and access to vital health services for everyone involved, addressing health disparities, and fostering an environment that encourages sustainable development. Accessible and effective healthcare is crucial for the wellbeing of entire communities, and every effort must be made to ensure that medical technologies align with the context and challenges these countries encounter [400, 401, 68, 402, 403, 404, 405].

When embarking on the journey of developing new and innovative technologies that are specifically designed to improve healthcare delivery, particularly with a focus on meaningfully addressing the unique needs of underserved populations, it becomes exceedingly important to first establish a clear and comprehensive understanding of the target customers and their specific contexts. This process involves contextualizing each device within the broader framework of the prevailing economic, social, and infrastructure conditions of the area being served and the populations being reached. The reality is that complex and sophisticated technology tends to encounter significant challenges and frequently fails when it is introduced into such diverse and multifaceted contexts. For technology to be truly appropriate and beneficial in a healthcare setting, it must effectively function and seamlessly integrate within the constraints and realities of the current environmental and infrastructural conditions in which it is placed. The scarcity of suitable medical technologies available for these vulnerable communities further aggravates the numerous challenges that the public health sector already faces on multiple fronts. The ability and willingness of health professionals to incorporate and adopt new technology into their care delivery processes are heavily influenced by their detailed understanding of the specific local needs, preferences, resource availability, and constraints of the communities they serve. When advanced technologies are carelessly introduced into a healthcare system without thorough consideration for these essential factors, the outcomes are often counterproductive; not only do such technologies become significantly underutilized, but they can also potentially harm the effectiveness of healthcare delivery itself, leading to negative consequences for patient health and community well-being. Extensive empirical evidence gathered from developing countries underscores the idea that imported foreign technologies frequently prove to be ineffective and less responsive to local healthcare challenges. In contrast, technologies that are developed locally tend to perform significantly better and yield more favorable results in practice. This is primarily because locally developed solutions are designed with a clear understanding of existing skills within the workforce, resource availability in the community, and the logistical aspects of maintenance and support required for their continued operation. Such alignment empowers healthcare workers to operate these devices effectively without needing to undergo extensive additional training or relying on scarce and often costly spare parts that may not be readily available in their locale. Therefore, taking the necessary time to thoughtfully design or adapt medical technologies for specific local conditions and infrastructure results not only in an increased likelihood of successful implementation but also enhances the potential for improved healthcare outcomes that are sustainable over the long term, ultimately benefiting the entire community as a whole [406, 407, 408, 409, 410, 411]

14.1 Technical Challenges

Biomedical devices must satisfy very stringent technical requirements concerning not only performance but also biocompatibility, reliability, sterility, compatibility with an array of medical procedures and standards, along with production methods, and adaptability to the specific use environment where they are deployed. The emergence of new design and research challenges is increasingly driven by the need to create efficient prototyping tools and methods that enable rapid translation into practical and cost-effective solutions. These solutions must effectively meet current market demands, which often reflect the more restrictive regulatory contexts that have been instituted to guarantee patients' safety and well-being. Additional critical issues surface from the large number of biomedical device manufacturers and the substantial variety of equipment currently available in marketplace. This variety can complicate procurement standardization efforts. The complexity is further amplified by the integration of numerous advanced technologies present in modern devicesincluding but not limited to materials, mechanics, electronics, informatics, communications, and optics-and by the increasingly widespread distribution of biomedical devices within the healthcare system. As a consequence, devices are typically designed for use at a variety of levels within the care chain: by highly trained experts in hospitals or specialist centers; by nonexpert operators functioning in hospitals, clinics, or general practitioners' offices; or even by patients and home users who require user-friendly designs. These diverse distribution models resemble consumer markets more closely than traditional professional fields and introduce additional constraints to product design and development processes that must be meticulously managed to maximize the potential success of new devices in a competitive healthcare environment. [406, 412, 21, 413, 414]

A further technical, as well as technological, product development challenge concerns the pressing necessity for continuous and regular upgrades and improvements. This increasing demand is especially evident in the current dynamic scenario, where advanced diagnostic tools such as multifunctional biophotonics and multimodal imaging systems are rapidly emerging alongside highly versatile platforms. These platforms, for example, those innovatively developed in areas such as nanomedicine and the cutting-edge field of additive manufacturing technologies, hold the potential to give birth to entirely new families of products and innovative combinations. These anticipated future developments promise to significantly enhance the potential and overall performance of biomedical devices in many ways.

However, without appropriate and effective regulation, the resultant complexity involved threatens to impair their widespread introduction and adoption, both nationally and internationally across various markets. [21, 415, 22, 7, 223]

14.2 Market and Adoption Barriers

The market for biomedical devices is characterized by a diverse range of innovative products, including surgical robots, implantable pacemakers, diagnostic imaging systems, and photoacoustic instrumentation. This sector is experiencing an expansion of opportunities, even as it faces numerous challenges and barriers that can hinder both the development and commercialization of these advanced technologies. Despite the presence of many emerging technologies that show promise in positively impacting the field of medicine, it is important to note that only a small fraction of these innovations successfully progress beyond the confines of laboratory environments to deliver tangible clinical benefits to patients and healthcare providers alike. [223,416]

During the introduction of new biomedical devices, significant market and adoption impediments frequently arise. These challenges include prohibitively high production costs, inadequate infrastructure, and a notable lack of regulatory knowledge, all of which severely hinder the translation of innovation into real-world applications, especially in low- and middle-income countries. Additionally, unclear or entirely absent policies and guidelines further thwart the critical processes of device validation and market entry, which contributes to a persistent and troubling healthcare innovation gap that continues to affect communities in need. Addressing these barriers is essential for fostering a more inclusive and equitable healthcare landscape. [406,417]

In the intricate regulatory context, the medical device industry is uniquely poised to balance dynamic innovation alongside stringent controls that govern its operations. Although venture capital plays a pivotal role in sustaining industry growth and fostering new advancements, the associated design and development activities remain highly sensitive to the legal oversight required to ensure safety and efficacy. Applications such as medical software and various other technological solutions typically undergo protracted approval processes, which can significantly delay technology adoption. This delay persists even as these innovations have the potential to enable transformative improvements in patient care. Regulation inevitably straddles the delicate line between protecting innovation and promoting it

actively, a tension that is openly acknowledged by the agencies charged with overseeing the safety, effectiveness, and overall efficacy of medical devices in the marketplace. The ongoing dialogue between innovators and regulators continues to shape the landscape of the industry as it seeks to find an equilibrium that benefits all stakeholders involved. [46, 418, 419]

The expansion of intellectual property systems along with enhanced supervision, as highlighted in China's 14th Five Year Plan (2021–2025), exemplifies significant strategic responses to these ongoing challenges. This evolution of a digital medical device ecosystem is designed to effectively streamline market access for a variety of cutting-edge products. Consequently, greater opportunities for localized innovations emerge, particularly amid the intensified competition in high-end equipment sectors. This situation underscores the imperative need to address existing barriers and expedite the translation of promising technologies into clinical practice, thereby ensuring that advancements reach those who can benefit from them most efficiently and swiftly [420, 421, 422].

Future Perspectives in Medical Physics

Medical physics has significantly contributed to health by driving the development and improvement of various technologies that facilitate diagnosis, therapy, or general well-being. Emerging trends encompass new therapeutic approaches, material innovation, and novel diagnostic systems, particularly in sophisticated imaging, bio-nano-technology, and robotics. Future advances will emerge from orchestrated collaborations among research institutions, industries, governmental bodies, and other funding organizations that share an unwavering ambition to innovate for health [136, 423]

15.1 Emerging Technologies

The introduction of new technologies has the potential to extend patients' lives, improve the services provided, attract investment and top calibre employees, and generate new intellectual property and spin-off companies. The medical challenges facing modern healthcare systems are diverse and urgent, ranging from ageing populations and the consequent increase in chronic diseases, through to the need for early diagnosis through screening [424].

Current trends lie in taking existing physical principles and combining these with the new technologies of wearable lightweight surfaces and networks to provide patient-centred services that are accessible anytime and anywhere [425].

Examples include combining pressure monitoring with new light leak detection surfaces, through to adding complex drug and fluid delivery profiles, making use of the growing understanding of the most effective physical treatments [136].

15.2 Interdisciplinary Collaborations

The emergence of new biomedical devices relies heavily on collaboration among experts from various fields, including clinicians, scientists, and engineers. Clinicians contribute essential knowledge about medical procedures and identify gaps where new technologies can make

significant improvements. Scientists provide insights into the fundamental understanding of the problem, detailing the underlying physical, chemical, or biological variables and forecasting the impact of potential solutions. Engineers design and develop the devices that integrate this knowledge into practical tools. Successful design involves a user-centred approach, ensuring that devices are fit for specific purposes and user-friendly. Progress typically begins with the development of concepts, followed by a series of prototypes that are manufactured, tested, and refined based on feedback from end users. Ongoing advances are strongly driven by such communication and interaction among the various experts involved [426, 427, 7].

Case Studies of Successful Innovations

The process of innovation involves generating, evaluating, and disseminating new or improved inventions such as products, manufacturing processes, or clinical practices in biomedicine. Innovation requires both invention and exploitation, including the transfer and broad utilization of research outcomes. Empirical studies outside the biomedical realm indicate that incremental improvements dominate, with radical innovations being less common. Innovations can be categorized by type-product, process, practice-and by novelty-new items or modifications. Medical devices and prescription drugs are considered industrial goods used by professionals rather than sold directly to consumers. Successful biomedical innovation often combines empirical insights from non-biomedical fields with speculative transfer of ideas, though detailed empirical research specific to biomedical processes remains limited [428, 429].

Clinicians' contributions to coronary artery stent development highlight several issues concerning transformative device innovation. Innovators note that current patenting practices can harm collaborative relationships, with university technology transfer offices sometimes seeking greater control or imposing burdensome licensing agreements. Failure to attend to patents hindered timely protection of stent technology. Uncertainty regarding ownership of patentable improvements on licensed designs persists [430].

Ethical and Social Implications

High-quality healthcare is intrinsically linked to the ongoing development and innovation of groundbreaking biomedical devices and advanced medical physics technologies. Nonetheless, the rapid proliferation commercialization of various medical devices may inadvertently lead to excessive experimentation and unverified practices, resulting in potential societal harm or significant financial losses. The issues surrounding patient privacy, the secure exchange of confidential data, and overall data security within medical devices represent critical ethical challenges that demand careful consideration and resolution. Moreover, the rise of digital medicine technologies integrated within these medical devices has introduced an ethical and social imbalance. At present, these technologies are primarily designed with a focus on capturing competitive market share, rather than promoting social advantage or ensuring justice within healthcare delivery. This imbalance is further exacerbated for vulnerable populations situated in developing countries, who continue to lack sufficient access to the costly healthcare equipment that is supplied by such advanced systems. Until these pressing obstacles are effectively addressed and overcome, the potential of medical devices and medical physics technologies will remain severely constrained in their ability to bolster high-quality global healthcare initiatives. Given the extensive and diverse scope of biomedical devices alongside medical physics, several preliminary and relevant topics were excluded from this research endeavor at this stage; nonetheless, it is anticipated that these important subjects will be thoroughly explored and incorporated in the proposed comprehensive compendium in the future [294, 22, 222]

17.1 Patient Privacy and Data Security

Security and privacy protection mechanisms are absolutely critical components in modern healthcare practices today. During the design and implementation of any healthcare system, it is essential to address these issues in a prompt and effective manner. Providing effective treatment solutions without adequately protecting patient privacy would constitute an

unethical medical practice that compromises patient trust and confidentiality. Therefore, it is of utmost importance to prioritize these protective measures to ensure the safety and security of patient information in all healthcare processes [431].

The increasing use of sophisticated software technologies significantly enhances the diagnostic, therapeutic, and overall medical capabilities of modern medical devices; however, it also introduces notable technical and security vulnerabilities that could lead to serious consequences if not properly implemented. To address these challenges, a proactive, risk-based approach to security design is not only necessary but crucial to facilitate effective and consistent communication with patients regarding these important issues. The healthcare sector faces various daunting cybersecurity challenges, which include the extensive volume of sensitive personal data that must be protected and the heavy reliance on software for delivering lifesaving treatments to patients. Enhanced data security measures are imperative to prevent potential care disruptions, identity theft, and various forms of harm that could impact patients' health and safety. While some medical device manufacturers forward-thinking have proactively incorporated essential security measures into their products, formal procedures for conducting vulnerability investigations and for coordinated disclosures regarding security concerns in the medical domain still remain inconsistent and fragmented. As a consequence, clinicians and patients often lack access to comprehensive information that is needed to effectively evaluate associated security risks and vulnerabilities. This uncertainty raises critical questions about how vulnerability reports may impact patient care and treatment plans, the evidentiary standards that are required to establish a clear security risk, and the expected correlation between known vulnerabilities or attacks and the overall safety of patients receiving care [432, 433, 434]

The establishment of legislations, regulations, and policies over the past few decades has greatly emphasized the critical importance of effectively securing patients' sensitive information. With the rapid introduction of new technologies in the healthcare sector, additional challenges have emerged for healthcare organizations; it is essential for these organizations to foster a strong awareness of the new avenues opened by concepts like Bring Your Own Devices (BYOD), Personal Area Networks (PANs), and Internet of Things (IoT) devices, all of which present potential opportunities for data storage and transmission. The networked healthcare environment not only facilitates efficient information exchange but also enables remote monitoring

and automated medication delivery systems, capabilities that are contingent on the adoption of advanced storage and networking solutions suited for contemporary needs. Regulations such as HIPAA and FISMA provide a comprehensive framework to guide healthcare practitioners, organizations, and policymakers in effectively safeguarding patient privacy, ensuring that sensitive information remains protected against unauthorized access. Furthermore, the widespread integration of sensors in various medical devices, including those implanted within the human body, significantly broadens the scope of data security considerations that need to be actively addressed in diverse healthcare settings, making it imperative for relevant stakeholders to stay informed and vigilant about evolving threats and protective measures [435, 436, 437].

17.2 Equity in Healthcare Access

Achieving equity in healthcare is at the heart of a truly successful biomedical innovation. The very highest cost treatment for the just few with the highest ability to pay is of little good to the population at large. Access to cheaper wearable technologies, such as fitness bands and watches that report on physical functioning, can be of great value for many sensitive aspects of health. Similarly, remote patient monitoring can allow a patient to be treated and observed at home, whilst reducing the burden for, and risk of spreading disease to, the nursing and medical staff [438, 439].

Although telemedicine and telecare have many benefits with remote access and low cost, a concern remains that whether the patient is in a city or in the country, the diagnosis is as accurate and the treatment as effective, safe and compassionate. The movement to more telemedicine and indeed telecare brings with it many concerns, not least of which are those relating to sensitive patient data, data security, and oftentimes unreliable internet access. The concerns remain in place whether the actual care is being delivered 999 miles away or just 90 miles away [440, 441].

Conclusion

Biomedical devices encompass any instrumentation, software, or implant that interacts with the human body for diagnostic or therapeutic applications. Medical physics constitutes the study and application of physical principles to these instruments and devices. The two fields are therefore fundamentally linked in the development and creation of healthcare solutions.

Innovation refers to the introduction of new ideas or methods. The role of innovation in the fields of biomedical devices and medical physics is immense. Recent developments across diverse platforms such as remote medicine, telecare, artificial intelligence, robotic surgeries, and nanotechnology have drastically impacted both the quality and timescale of modern healthcare schemes.

Within international regulatory frameworks, these networks provide new opportunities for the delivery of innovative and cost-effective medical products and services. Open regulatory systems facilitate the development and marketing of these products worldwide. Therefore, a conceptual framework with a thorough understanding of innovation (and the associated concepts), coupled with an overview of regulatory procedures, drives further progress in the sector [235].

References

- B. Matovu, M. Takuwa, C. Norman Mpaata, F. Denison et al., "Review of investigational medical devices' clinical trials and regulations in Africa as a benchmark for new innovations," 2022. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 2. K. Khramtcov, "Analysis of Power Supply Methods for Wireless Biomedical Sensors and Future Development Prospects," 2018. [PDF]
- 3. M. Kumar and V. Chopra, "Biomedical Devices for Remote Diagnosis and Monitoring Based on IOT," in *Role of Science and Technology for Sustainable ...*, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- Y. Srivastava, S. Virk, S. Hazra, and S. Ganguli, "An overview of the various medical devices for diagnosis, monitoring, and treatment of diseases," in *Biomedical Engineering and Systems*, 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- A. Y. K. Chan, "Biomedical device technology: principles and design," 2023. [HTML]
- W. Shafik, "Smart biomedical devices for smart healthcare," in *Learning Models and Architectures for Biomedical Applications*, 2025, Elsevier. [HTML]
- F. Tettey, S. K. Parupelli, and S. Desai, "A review of biomedical devices: classification, regulatory guidelines, human factors, software as a medical device, and cybersecurity," Biomedical Materials & Devices, 2024. nsf.gov
- 8. P. Li, G. H. Lee, S. Y. Kim, S. Y. Kwon et al., "From diagnosis to treatment: recent advances in patient-friendly biosensors and implantable devices," ACS nano, 2021. [HTML]
- M. C. Kelvin-Agwu, M. O. Adelodun, G. T. Igwama, "Strategies for optimizing the management of medical equipment in large healthcare institutions," Strategies, 2024. researchgate.net
- S. Mukherjee, S. Suleman, R. Pilloton, J. Narang et al., "State of the art in smart portable, wearable, ingestible and implantable devices for health status monitoring and disease management," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com

- 11. Z. Akhtar, "Exploring biomedical engineering (BME): Advances within accelerated computing and regenerative medicine for a computational and medical science ...," J. Emerg. Med. OA, 2024. academia.edu
- 12. Z. B. Akhtar, "Accelerated computing a biomedical engineering and medical science perspective," Annals of the Academy of Romanian Scientists Series, vol. 2023. aos.ro
- 13. Z. AKHTAR, "Biomedical engineering (bme) and medical health science: an investigation perspective exploration," Quantum Journal of Medical and Health Sciences, 2024. qjmhs.com
- 14. A. Jaafari, Z. Rahmani, A. Zolfagharizadeh, "Innovations in Biomedical Engineering: A Comprehensive Review of Emerging Trends and Technologies," 2025. [HTML]
- 15. M. Ramezani and Z. Mohd Ripin, "4D printing in biomedical engineering: advancements, challenges, and future directions," Journal of functional biomaterials, 2023. mdpi.com
- 16. G. Shabir, "Advancing patient outcomes: The intersection of biomedical engineering, medical devices, and AI," 2024. researchgate.net
- 17. Y. Zhu, B. Kong, R. Liu, and Y. Zhao, "Developing biomedical engineering technologies for reproductive medicine," Smart Medicine, 2022. wiley.com
- 18. O. Panahi and S. Farrokh, "Bioengineering innovations in dental implantology," Current Trends in Biomedical Engineering & ..., 2025. researchgate.net
- 19. L. Carolina Alba Martínez, "Medición de límites de descarga para vertimientos generados en medicina nuclear," 2015. [PDF]
- 20. M. C. Kelvin-Agwu and M. O. Adelodun, "The role of biomedical engineers in enhancing patient care through efficient equipment management," *Journal of Frontiers*, 2024. researchgate.net
- M. C. Kelvin-Agwu and M. O. Adelodun, "Advancements in biomedical device implants: A comprehensive review of current technologies," Int. J. Front. Med., 2024. researchgate.net
- A. B. Singh and C. Khandelwal, "Revolutionizing healthcare materials: Innovations in processing, advancements, and challenges for enhanced medical device integration and performance," Journal of ..., 2024. [HTML]

- B. N. Reddy, S. Saravanan, V. Manjunath, "Review on next-gen healthcare: the role of MEMS and nanomaterials in enhancing diagnostic and therapeutic outcomes," Biomaterials, 2024. scifiniti.com
- 24. A. H. Zamzam, A. K. Abdul Wahab, M. M. Azizan, et al., "A systematic review of medical equipment reliability assessment in improving the quality of healthcare services," *Frontiers in Public Health*, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 25. D. Gala, H. Behl, M. Shah, and A. N. Makaryus, "The role of artificial intelligence in improving patient outcomes and future of healthcare delivery in cardiology: a narrative review of the literature," Healthcare, 2024. mdpi.com
- M. Tan, Y. Xu, Z. Gao, T. Yuan, Q. Liu, and R. Yang, "Recent advances in intelligent wearable medical devices integrating biosensing and drug delivery," *Advanced*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 27. S. M. A. Iqbal, I. Mahgoub, E. Du, M. A. Leavitt, and others, "Advances in healthcare wearable devices," NPJ Flexible Electronics, vol. 5, no. 1, 2021. nature.com
- 28. N. Kasoju, N. S. Remya, R. Sasi, S. Sujesh, and B. Soman, "Digital health: trends, opportunities and challenges in medical devices, pharma and bio-technology," CSI Transactions on Information Systems, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 29. C. Wang, T. He, H. Zhou, Z. Zhang et al., "Artificial intelligence enhanced sensors-enabling technologies to next-generation healthcare and biomedical platform," Bioelectronic Medicine, 2023. springer.com
- A. Bessière, J. O. Durand, and C. Noûs, "Persistent luminescence materials for deep photodynamic therapy," Nanophotonics, 2021. degruyterbrill.com
- 31. R. Quansah Amissah, A. Kwesi Atchurey, L. Appiah, E. Kofi Fiakumah et al., "BIOMEDICAL ENGINEERING IN GHANA," 2013. [PDF]
- 32. E. Sheikhbahei and A. A. Ari, "Harnessing the power of emerging digital technologies for improved sustainability and productivity in biomedical engineering and neuroscience," Scientific Hypotheses, 2024. scientifichypotheses.org
- 33. S. Bashir, C. Dahlman, N. Kanehira, and K. Tilmes, "The converging technology revolution and human capital: Potential and implications for

- South Asia," 2021. google.com
- 34. O. Y. Romero, R. Boschma, D. Li, R. C. Kakderi et al., "D1. 2 The geography of the green, digital and twin technological and scientific specialisation in Europe," researchgate.net, researchgate.net
- 35. B. Singh and C. Kaunert, "Human-Machine Nexus for Digital Rebound Fostering Futuristic Energy-Efficiency: Ecological Footprint of Technology for Smart-Sustainable Urban Mobility," in Strategies for Efficient and Sustainable Building, 2024. [HTML]
- X. Yu and Q. Wang, "Tentative governance: An exploration of ethical governance strategies for emerging science and technology," Cultures of Science, 2024. sagepub.com
- 37. P. A. Schulte, V. Leso, and I. Iavicoli, "Responsible development of emerging technologies: extensions and lessons from nanotechnology for worker protection," *Journal of Occupational and Environmental Medicine*, 2024. lww.com
- 38. L. Castro-Diaz, A. Roque, A. Wutich, L. Landes, and W. W. Li, "Participatory convergence: Integrating convergence and participatory action research," Minerva, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 39. A. Habitamu, "Barriers to Medical Equipment Utilization in Public Hospitals of Bahir Dar City: A Qualitative Study," 2022. bdu.edu.et
- R. T. Ssekitoleko, B. N. Arinda, S. Oshabahebwa, et al., "The status of medical devices and their utilization in 9 tertiary hospitals and 5 research institutions in Uganda," Global Clinical..., 2021. academia.edu
- 41. C. Simeoni and W. Kinoti, "Medical equipment leasing in Kenya: Neocolonial global finance and misplaced health priorities," in *Corporate Capture of Development: Public ...*, 2023. oapen.org
- 42. A. Linares Dorronsoro, "Data-driven Maintenance Planning for Medical Devices at L2R," 2025. utwente.nl
- 43. V. Kumar, G. Gaurav, V. Khan, S. Choudhary, "Life cycle assessment and its application in medical waste disposal," Materials Today, 2023. [HTML]
- 44. G. Gereffi and P. Pananond, "Resilience decoded: The role of firms, global value chains, and the state in COVID-19 medical supplies," California Management Review, vol. 2022. ssrn.com
- 45. S. Ramzan, A. Aqdus, V. Ravi, and D. Koundal, "Healthcare

- applications using blockchain technology: Motivations and challenges," IEEE Transactions, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. researchgate.net
- 46. A. Lewin, "Medical Device Innovation In America: The Tensions Between Food and Drug Law and Patent Law," 2014. [PDF]
- 47. T. Saidi and T. S Douglas, "Medical device regulation in South Africa: The Medicines and Related Substances Amendment Act 14 of 2015," 2018. [PDF]
- 48. M. Manu and G. Anand, "A review of medical device regulations in India, comparison with European Union and way-ahead," 2021. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 49. U. Raghununan, "Parallel Regulatory–HTA Reviews: Implications for Improving Access to Medical Devices in South Africa," 2022. wits.ac.za
- 50. J. Mugwagwa, A. Mkwashi, D. Kale, and D. Wield, "Analysing the coevolution of embedded regulatory capabilities in firms and the state: the case of South Africa's medical device sector," 2021. ucl.ac.uk
- 51. A. Mkwashi, D. Kale, J. Mugwagwa, and D. Wield, "Analysing the coevolution of embedded regulatory capabilities in firms and the state: the case of South Africa's medical device sector," 2021. open.ac.uk
- 52. M. Etuket, "South African medical device regulatory pathways: A case study of the effect of the emergency authorization protocols during the Covid-19 pandemic," 2023. uct.ac.za
- 53. S. Cha, "Policy mix framework for AI regulation: A game-theoretic analysis of risk-based direct regulation and standardization approaches," Information Development, 2025. [HTML]
- 54. A. S. Soliman Metwally, "Investigation of peculiarities of the medical products market development in African countries in the conditions of globalization," 2023. nuph.edu.ua
- 55. Y. Sharma, D. Singh, and A. Singh, "An Introduction to Regulatory Aspects Related to Medical Devices in Japan and Canada," Current Indian Science, 2023. benthamdirect.com
- I. Georgilas, G. Dagnino, P. Tarassoli, R. Atkins et al., "Robot-Assisted Fracture Surgery: Surgical Requirements and System Design," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 57. F. Yang, L. Wang, and X. Ding, "Why some 'User-Centred' medical devices do not provide satisfactory user experiences? An investigation

- on user information factors in new device development ...," in *International Conference on Human-Computer ...*, 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 58. E. Abela, P. Farrugia, M. V. Gauci, and P. Vella, "A novel user-Centred framework for the holistic design of therapeutic medical devices," *Proceedings of the Design Society*, vol. 2, pp. 159-168, 2022. cambridge.org
- 59. C. Billa and M. Chavali, "Usability to User Experience with Interactive Systems in Biomedical Applications and Devices," in Human-Machine Interface Technology, 2023. [HTML]
- 60. E. Nkhwashu and M. Matthee, "The Use of User-Centred Design Strategies to Design Wearable Mobile Health Technologies: A Systematic," in *Proceedings of Ninth International ... *, 2024. [HTML]
- 61. J. Ferreira, R. Peixoto, L. Lopes, S. Beniczky, "User involvement in the design and development of medical devices in epilepsy: A systematic review," Epilepsia, vol. 2024. wiley.com
- 62. A.M. Moseley and A.D. Campbell, "Human-Centred Design Processes for Appropriate, Equitable, and Accessible Medical Device Design Innovation," in *Service Design, Creativity, and Innovation in ...*, 2024, Springer.springer.com
- 63. E. Rovini, G. Galperti, L. Lorenzon, and L. Radi, "Design of a novel wearable system for healthcare applications: applying the user-centred design approach to SensHand device," in *Proceedings on Interactive Design*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 64. E. Nkhwashu and M. Matthee, "The use of User-Centred design strategies to design wearable mobile health technologies: a systematic literature review," in *International Congress on Information and ...*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 65. J. L. Martin, D. J Clarke, S. P Morgan, J. A Crowe et al., "A user-centred approach to requirements elicitation in medical device development: a case study from an industry perspective," 2012. [PDF]
- 66. S. S. Pillalamarri, L. M. Huyett, and A. Abdel-Malek, "Novel Bluetooth-Enabled Tubeless Insulin Pump: A User Experience Design Approach for a Connected Digital Diabetes Management Platform," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 67. W. Health Organization, "Global patient safety action plan 2021-2030:

- towards eliminating avoidable harm in health care," 2021. google.com
- 68. B. Pradhan and S. Bhattacharyya, "IoT-based applications in healthcare devices," *Journal of Healthcare*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 69. M. I. Ahmed, B. Spooner, J. Isherwood, M. Lane, and E. Orrock, "A systematic review of the barriers to the implementation of artificial intelligence in healthcare," Cureus, 2023. cureus.com
- A. Tase, B. Vadhwana, P. Buckle, and G. B. Hanna, "Usability challenges in the use of medical devices in the home environment: a systematic review of literature," Applied Ergonomics, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 71. B. Coldewey, A. Diruf, R. Roehrig, and M. Lipprandt, "Causes of use errors in ventilation devices-Systematic review," Applied Ergonomics, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 72. PST Shanmugam, P. Thangaraju, and T. Sampath, "Significant and Nonsignificant Risk Medical Devices," 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 73. F. Crapanzano, A. Luschi, F. Satta, L. Sani, "Evidence based management of medical devices: A follow-up experiment," in *Signal Processing and ...*, 2025. [HTML]
- 74. A. Badnjevic, "Evidence-based maintenance of medical devices: Current shortage and pathway towards solution," Technology and Health Care, 2023. researchgate.net
- 75. A. S. Sarvestani and M. Coulentianos, "Defining and characterizing task-shifting medical devices," *Globalization and Health*, vol. 17, no. 1, 2021. springer.com
- S. H. Chang, D. Chen, C. S. Chen, D. Zhou, "Device Failures and Adverse Events Associated With Rhinolaryngoscopes: Analysis of the Manufacturer and User Facility Device Experience (MAUDE)," JMIR Human Factors, vol. 2025. jmir.org
- 77. B. Elahi, "Safety risk management for medical devices," 2021. diac.ca
- 78. I. Visescu, "Complicated, by Design: The Dynamic Use of a User-Centred Design Process," 2025. ru.is
- 79. J. Houtkamp, S. Janssen, R. Lokers, "Applying User-centred Design to Climate and Environmental Tools," Environmental Modelling & ..., vol. 2025, Elsevier. ssrn.com

- 80. K. D. Espinoza Concha and C. Zapata Del Río, "A User-Centred Design Framework for Agile Development of Educational Gamified Applications," in *International Conference on ...*, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 81. H. Durak, H. Gultekin, D. Haralampopoulos, "User-centered design in agile: Integrating psychological principles for enhanced user experience," *International Journal of ...*, 2024. academia.edu
- 82. I. Visescu, M. Lárusdóttir, and A. S. Islind, "Exposure to User-Centred Design Activities: Experiences in Higher Education," in 2025 IEEE Global ..., 2025. [HTML]
- 83. I. Leason, N. Longridge, M. R. Mathur, and F. Nickpour, "An opportunity for inclusive and human-centred design," British Dental Journal, 2022. researchgate.net
- 84. L. Hakobyan and A. Sowriraghavan, "Enhancing Engineering Education Through User-Centred Design Integration," in *International Conference on Human ...*, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 85. E. Fountzilas, A. M. Tsimberidou, H. H. Vo, and R. Kurzrock, "Clinical trial design in the era of precision medicine," Genome medicine, 2022. springer.com
- H. Chopra, D. K. Shin, K. Munjal, K. Dhama, "Revolutionizing clinical trials: the role of AI in accelerating medical breakthroughs," Journal of Surgery, 2023. lww.com
- 87. A. Sharma, T. Virmani, V. Pathak, et al., "Artificial intelligence-based data-driven strategy to accelerate research, development, and clinical trials of COVID vaccine," BioMed Research, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library, wiley.com
- 88. G. Leipold, R. Tóth, P. Hársfalvi, L. Lőczi, M. Török, "Comprehensive evaluation of a levonorgestrel intrauterine device (LNG-IUD), metformin, and liraglutide for fertility preservation in endometrial cancer," Life, 2024. mdpi.com
- 89. A. ..., S. Alamowitch, S. Vannier, and the ASTER2 Trial Investigators, "... and stent retriever vs stent retriever alone on revascularization in patients with acute ischemic stroke and large vessel occlusion: the ASTER2 randomized clinical trial," JAMA, vol. 2021. jamanetwork.com
- 90. M. Barsalou, M. Barsalou, and S. G. Klaus, "Identifying Customer

- Satisfaction Characteristics with the Kano Model for the Agile Development of Video Games," Quality Innovation Prosperity, 2024. qip-journal.eu
- 91. V. Chang, D. Lawrence, L. M. Thao Doan, "New product design and implementation of aboleth: a mobile D&D character creator for enterprise mobile applications and metaverse," *Enterprise Information Systems*, 2024. aston.ac.uk
- S. Deo, "Analysis of customer satisfaction and perceived quality for improvement of project management methodology in a video game project," 2022. dbs.ie
- 93. J. Y. S. Asamoah, "Evaluating Key Determinants of Customer Satisfaction: A Focus on Customer Relations, Service Quality, Product Quality, and Supply Chain Management.," 2025. theseus.fi
- 94. L. Andrei, "Test Quest: Improving the onboarding experience for novice Dungeons and Dragons players through personalised AI-generated content.," 2024. utwente.nl
- 95. S. Moradi, R. Ansari, and R. Taherkhani, "A systematic analysis of construction performance management: Key performance indicators from 2000 to 2020," Iranian Journal of Science and Technology, vol. 2022, Springer. researchgate.net
- 96. T. M. Deserno (né Lehmann), H. Handels, K. H. Maier-Hein (né Fritzsche), S. Mersmann et al., "Viewpoints on Medical Image Processing: From Science to Application," 2013. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 97. S. K. M Shadekul Islam, M. D. Abdullah Al Nasim, I. Hossain, D. Md Azim Ullah et al., "Introduction of Medical Imaging Modalities," 2023. [PDF]
- 98. D. Comaniciu, K. Engel, B. Georgescu, and T. Mansi, "Shaping the Future through Innovations: From Medical Imaging to Precision Medicine," 2016. [PDF]
- 99. B. Han, J. Yang, and Z. Zhang, "Selective methods promote protein solid-state NMR," *Journal of Physical Chemistry Letters*, vol. 2024, ACS Publications. [HTML]
- 100. Y. Liu, G. Lin, G. Bao, M. Guan, L. Yang, Y. Liu, D. Wang, et al., "Stratified Disk Microrobots with Dynamic Maneuverability and Proton-Activatable Luminescence for in Vivo Imaging," ACS Publications, 2021. [HTML]

- 101. G. Hong, C. Lou, and M. Tang, "Solid-state nuclear magnetic resonance for garnet-type based solid lithium electrolytes," Microstructures, 2025. oaepublish.com
- 102. A. Singh, D. Dayton, D. M. Ladd, G. Reuveni, "Local structure in crystalline, glass and melt states of a hybrid metal halide perovskite," Journal of the ..., 2024. [HTML]
- 103. Z. Zhang, Q. Zhao, Z. Gong, R. Du, M. Liu, and Y. Zhang, "Progress, challenges and opportunities of NMR and XL-MS for cellular structural biology," JACS Au, 2024. acs.org
- 104. M. Getzin, L. Gjesteby, Y. J. Chuang, S. McCallum et al., "A Pilot Study on Coupling CT and MRI through Use of Semiconductor Nanoparticles," 2014. [PDF]
- 105. N. Kim, J. Choi, J. Yi, S. Choi et al., "An Engineering View on Megatrends in Radiology: Digitization to Quantitative Tools of Medicine," 2013. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 106. B. Abhisheka, S. K. Biswas, B. Purkayastha, and D. Das, "Recent trend in medical imaging modalities and their applications in disease diagnosis: a review," Multimedia Tools and Applications, vol. 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 107. S. Hussain, I. Mubeen, N. Ullah, "Modern diagnostic imaging technique applications and risk factors in the medical field: a review," BioMed Research, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 108. D. Kumar, B. Pratap, N. Boora, "A comparative study of medical imaging modalities," *Journal of Radiology*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. radiologyjournals.com
- 109. M. Ogdi, E. M. Tawashi, I. A. Hakami, T. M. Hayan et al., "... imaging techniques: a review of technological advances in the field of medical imaging, such as magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), computed tomography (CT ...," Development, 2023. core.ac.uk
- 110. P. Kumar and S. Srivastava, "Basic understanding of medical imaging modalities," in *Medical Image*, 2022. [HTML]
- 111. M. Illimoottil and D. Ginat, "Recent advances in deep learning and medical imaging for head and neck cancer treatment: MRI, CT, and PET scans," Cancers, 2023. mdpi.com
- 112. M. Yaqub, F. Jinchao, K. Arshid, S. Ahmed, "Deep learning-based image reconstruction for different medical imaging modalities,"

- *Methods in Medicine*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 113. T. Beyer, D. L. Bailey, U. J. Birk, I. Buvat, C. Catana, et al., "Medical physics and imaging—A timely perspective," *Frontiers in Physics*, vol. 9, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 114. M. T. Mustapha, B. Uzun, D. U. Ozsahin, "A comparative study of X-ray based medical imaging devices," in Healthcare and Biomedical Engineering, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 115. N. Jonkergouw, M. R. Prins, D. Donse, P. van der Wurff, "Application of ultrasound to monitor in vivo residual bone movement within transtibial prosthetic sockets," *Scientific Reports*, 2024. nature.com
- 116. G. Cocco, V. Ricci, M. Villani, A. Delli Pizzi, J. Izzi, "Ultrasound imaging of bone fractures," in *Imaging*, 2022, Springer. springer.com
- 117. S. Feng, Q. T. K. Shea, K. Y. Ng, C. N. Tang, E. Kwong, "Automatic hyoid bone tracking in real-time ultrasound swallowing videos using deep learning based and correlation filter based trackers," Sensors, vol. 21, no. 15, 2021. mdpi.com
- 118. M. Mozaffarzadeh and D. J. E. Verschuur, "Accelerated 2-D real-time refraction-corrected transcranial ultrasound imaging," IEEE Transactions, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. google.com
- 119. S. Ipsen, D. Wulff, I. Kuhlemann, et al., "Towards automated ultrasound imaging—robotic image acquisition in liver and prostate for long-term motion monitoring," *Physics in Medicine & Biology*, vol. 66, no. 16, 2021. iop.org
- 120. Y. Toh, "Ultrasound versus magnetic resonance imaging as first-line imaging strategies for rotator cuff pathologies: a comprehensive analysis of clinical practices ...," Cureus, 2024. cureus.com
- 121. G. Pan, "Current status of dynamic musculoskeletal ultrasound for application to treatment of orthopedic diseases," American Journal of Translational Research, 2024. nih.gov
- 122. N. Nainoor and G. Pani, "Imaging of temporomandibular joint," in *... and Managing Temporomandibular Joint ...*, 2024. intechopen.com
- 123. X. Deng, M. Gould, and M. A. Ali, "A review of current advancements for wound healing: Biomaterial applications and medical devices,"
 Biomedical Materials Research Part, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com

- 124. C. Wang, E. Shirzaei Sani, C. D. Shih, C. T. Lim, "Wound management materials and technologies from bench to bedside and beyond," Nature Reviews, 2024. nih.gov
- 125. H. Yang, H. Fang, C. Wang, Y. Wang, C. Qi, and Y. Zhang, "3D printing of customized functional devices for smart biomedical systems," Wiley Online Library, 2024. wiley.com
- 126. A. Chakraborty, Y. Shamiya, S. P. Ravi, and A. Paul, "Leveraging the advancements in functional biomaterials and scaffold fabrication technologies for chronic wound healing applications," *Materials*, 2022. uwo.ca
- 127. C. Wang, E. Shirzaei Sani, and W. Gao, "Wearable bioelectronics for chronic wound management," *Advanced Functional Materials*, vol. XX, no. XX, pp. XX-XX, 2022. wiley.com
- 128. L. Wang, K. Jiang, and G. Shen, "Wearable, implantable, and interventional medical devices based on smart electronic skins," Advanced Materials Technologies, 2021. google.com
- 129. B. Yan, "Actuators for implantable devices: a broad view," Micromachines, 2022. mdpi.com
- 130. M. Veletic, E. H. Apu, M. Simic, J. Bergsland, "Implants with sensing capabilities," *Chemical*, vol. 2022, ACS Publications. ntnu.no
- 131. L. Wang, X. Ding, W. Feng, Y. Gao et al., "Biomechanical study on implantable and interventional medical devices," Acta Mechanica Sinica, 2021. [HTML]
- 132. Y. Liu, Q. Yu, L. Yang, and Y. Cui, "Materials and biomedical applications of implantable electronic devices," Advanced Materials Technologies, 2023. [HTML]
- 133. Z. Chu, Y. Zhou, S. Li, Q. Xu et al., "Implantable Medical Electronic Devices: Sensing Mechanisms, Communication Methods, and the Biodegradable Future," Applied Sciences, 2025. mdpi.com
- 134. D. Zrinscak, L. Lorenzon, M. Maselli, et al., "Soft robotics for physical simulators, artificial organs and implantable assistive devices," *Progress in Biomedical Engineering*, vol. 2023. sssup.it
- 135. Y. Wang, G. Li, L. Yang, R. Luo et al., "Development of innovative biomaterials and devices for the treatment of cardiovascular diseases," Advanced Materials, 2022. sxjbswyy.com

- 136. J. C. Chiao, J. M. Goldman, D. A. Heck, P. Kazanzides et al., "Metrology and Standards Needs for Some Categories of Medical Devices," 2008. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 137. T. O. Kim and K. H. Kwon, "A Systematic Review of the Effects of Non-invasive Care on the Body," Asian Journal of Beauty and Cosmetology, 2023. e-ajbc.org
- 138. H. C. Ates, A. Brunauer, F. von Stetten, et al., "Integrated devices for non-invasive diagnostics," *Advanced Functional Materials*, vol. 31, no. 1, 2021. wiley.com
- 139. R. Chen, L. Huang, R. Wang, J. Fei et al., "Advances in non-invasive neuromodulation techniques for improving cognitive function: a review," Brain sciences, 2024. mdpi.com
- 140. H. A. Alowaimer, S. S. Al Shutwi, M. K. Alsaegh, et al., "Comparative efficacy of non-invasive therapies in Temporomandibular Joint Dysfunction: a systematic review," Cureus, 2024. cureus.com
- 141. Z. Guo, P. E. Saw, and S. Jon, "Non-invasive physical stimulation to modulate the tumor microenvironment: unveiling a new frontier in cancer therapy," Bio Integration, 2024. scienceopen.com
- 142. C. Huo, G. Xu, H. Xie, T. Chen, and G. Shao, "Functional near-infrared spectroscopy in non-invasive neuromodulation," Neural Regeneration Research, vol. 2024. lww.com
- 143. G. Backiyalakshmi, U. Snekhalatha, and A. L. Salvador, "Recent advancements in non-invasive wearable electrochemical biosensors for biomarker analysis—A review," Analytical Biochemistry, 2024. [HTML]
- 144. H. Dinis, I. Colmiais, and P. Mateus Mendes, "Extending the Limits of Wireless Power Transfer to Miniaturized Implantable Electronic Devices," 2017. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 145. S. Yoo, J. Lee, H. Joo, and S. H. Sunwoo, "Wireless power transfer and telemetry for implantable bioelectronics," *Advanced Healthcare Materials*, vol. 10, no. 21, 2021. wiley.com
- 146. S. Roy, A. N. M. W. Azad, S. Baidya, and others, "Biomedical sensors and implants inside the human body: A comprehensive review on energy harvesting units, energy storage, and wireless power transfer techniques," *IEEE Transactions on Power*, vol. 2022. researchgate.net

- 147. M. Song, P. Jayathurathnage, E. Zanganeh, et al., "Wireless power transfer based on novel physical concepts," *Nature*, vol. 2021. researchgate.net
- 148. A. Essa, E. Almajali, S. Mahmoud, "Wireless power transfer for implantable medical devices: Impact of implantable antennas on energy harvesting," IEEE Open Journal, 2024. ieee.org
- 149. S. Mahmud, A. Nezaratizadeh, A. B. Satriya, Y. K. Yoon, "Harnessing metamaterials for efficient wireless power transfer for implantable medical devices," Bioelectronic, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 150. M. Mariello and C. M. Proctor, "Wireless Power and Data Transfer Technologies for flexible bionic and Bioelectronic interfaces: materials and applications," Advanced Materials Technologies, 2025. wiley.com
- 151. A. Javan-Khoshkholgh et al., "Simultaneous wireless power and data transfer: Methods to design robust medical implants for gastrointestinal tract," IEEE Journal of ..., vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. [HTML]
- 152. N. Kutner, K. R. Kunduru, L. Rizik, et al., "Recent advances for improving functionality, biocompatibility, and longevity of implantable medical devices and deliverable drug delivery systems," *Advanced Functional Materials*, vol. 31, no. 1, 2021. [HTML]
- 153. C. Y. Foo, N. Munir, A. Kumaria, Q. Akhtar, and C. J. Bullock, "Medical device advances in the treatment of glioblastoma," Cancers, vol. 14, no. 22, 2022. mdpi.com
- 154. M. F. Chan, C. Young, D. Gelblum, C. Shi, and C. Rincon, "A review and analysis of managing commonly seen implanted devices for patients undergoing radiation therapy," *Advances in Radiation*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 155. K. Khan, J. A. Kim, A. Gurgu, M. Khawaja, and D. Cozma, "Innovations in cardiac implantable electronic devices," *Drugs and Therapy*, vol. 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 156. R. P. Magisetty and S. M. Park, "New era of electroceuticals: clinically driven smart implantable electronic devices moving towards precision therapy," Micromachines, 2022. mdpi.com
- 157. J. Gierula, M. F. Paton, and K. K. Witte, "Advances in cardiac resynchronization and implantable cardioverter/defibrillator therapy: Medtronic Cobalt and Crome," Future Cardiology, 2021. [HTML]
- 158. T. Parker, "Medtronic," business.rutgers.edu, . rutgers.edu

- 159. B. J. Maron, N. A. M. Estes, E. J. Rowin, M. S. Maron, "Development of the Implantable Cardioverter-Defibrillator: JACC Historical Breakthroughs in Perspective," Journal of the American College of Cardiology, vol. 2023. jacc.org
- 160. G. Cosoli, L. Scalise, A. De Leo, P. Russo et al., "Development of a Novel Medical Device for Mucositis and Peri-Implantitis Treatment," 2020. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 161. X. Xue, H. Wu, Q. Cai, M. Chen, S. Moon, and others, "Flexible ultrasonic transducers for wearable biomedical applications: A review on advanced materials, structural designs, and future prospects," IEEE Transactions, vol. 2023. nih.gov
- 162. S. J. Wu and X. Zhao, "Bioadhesive technology platforms," Chemical Reviews, 2023. [HTML]
- 163. K. Kario, B. Williams, N. Tomitani, "Innovations in blood pressure measurement and reporting technology: international society of hypertension position paper endorsed by the world hypertension league," Journal of ..., 2024. cnr.it
- 164. O. Volod, C. M. Bunch, N. Zackariya, E. E. Moore, "Viscoelastic hemostatic assays: a primer on legacy and new generation devices," *Journal of Clinical ...*, 2022. mdpi.com
- 165. L. Liu, X. Geng, F. Yao, Y. Zhang, H. Zhang, and Y. Wang, "An Ultrasound-based Non-invasive Blood Pressure Estimation Method Based on Optimal Vascular Wall Tracking Position," IEEE, 2024. ieee.org
- 166. V. Baker, "Ultrasound-Guided Needle Insertion System for Percutaneous Nephrolithotomy," 2025. wpi.edu
- 167. W. Y. Jeong, M. Kwon, H. E. Choi, and K. S. Kim, "Recent advances in transdermal drug delivery systems: A review," Biomaterials research, 2021. springer.com
- 168. D. C. Fodor, D. F. Chitariu, and N. E. Seghedin, "Modern Limb Prosthetics: Classifications, Innovations, Challenges, and the Future of Human Augmentation," 2025. intechopen.com
- 169. M. Haghi, K. Thurow, and R. Stoll, "Wearable Devices in Medical Internet of Things: Scientific Research and Commercially Available Devices," 2017. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 170. A. Saikia and S. Jaiswal, "Internet of Things in Healthcare: Changing

- the landscape," in *IoT and Cloud Computing-Based Healthcare*, 2023. [HTML]
- 171. D. Thangam, A. B. Malali, G. Subramanian, "Transforming healthcare through Internet of Things," in *Proceedings for Internet of Things*, 2022. [HTML]
- 172. B. Singh and C. Kaunert, "Integration of cutting-edge technologies such as internet of things (IoT) and 5G in health monitoring systems: a comprehensive legal analysis and futuristic outcomes," GLS Law Journal, 2024. glslawjournal.in
- 173. M. Sayed, "The internet of things (iot), applications and challenges: a comprehensive review," Journal of Innovative Intelligent Computing and ..., 2024. gnt.com.pk
- 174. O. Vermesan and J. Bacquet, "Cognitive hyperconnected digital transformation: Internet of things intelligence evolution," 2022. [HTML]
- 175. M. Osama, A. A. Ateya, M. S. Sayed, M. Hammad, and P. Pławiak, "Internet of medical things and healthcare 4.0: Trends, requirements, challenges, and research directions," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 176. O. Vermesan and M. Eisenhauer, "Internet of things cognitive transformation technology research trends and applications," in Digital Transformation, 2022. taylorfrancis.com
- 177. Z. Amiri, A. Heidari, M. Zavvar, "The applications of nature-inspired algorithms in Internet of Things-based healthcare service: A systematic literature review," Transactions on ..., 2024. [HTML]
- 178. J. R. Walter, S. Xu, and J. A. Rogers, "From lab to life: how wearable devices can improve health equity," 2024. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 179. R. De Fazio, M. De Vittorio, and P. Visconti, "Innovative IoT solutions and wearable sensing systems for monitoring human biophysical parameters: A review," Electronics, 2021. mdpi.com
- 180. T. Stuart, J. Hanna, and P. Gutruf, "Wearable devices for continuous monitoring of biosignals: Challenges and opportunities," APL bioengineering, 2022. aip.org
- 181. D. Sim, M. C. Brothers, J. M. Slocik, A. E. Islam, and others, "Biomarkers and detection platforms for human health and performance monitoring: a review," *Advanced*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com

- 182. W. Sun, Z. Guo, Z. Yang, Y. Wu, W. Lan, Y. Liao, and X. Wu, "A review of recent advances in vital signals monitoring of sports and health via flexible wearable sensors," Sensors, vol. 22, no. 1, 2022. mdpi.com
- 183. J. R. Sempionatto, J. A. Lasalde-Ramírez, et al., "Wearable chemical sensors for biomarker discovery in the omics era," *Nature Reviews*, vol. 2022. nih.gov
- 184. Y. Zhang, X. T. Zheng, X. Zhang, J. Pan, "Hybrid integration of wearable devices for physiological monitoring," Chemical Engineering, vol. 2024, ACS Publications. [HTML]
- 185. K. Guk, G. Han, J. Lim, K. Jeong et al., "Evolution of Wearable Devices with Real-Time Disease Monitoring for Personalized Healthcare," 2019. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 186. C. Obianyo, V. C. Ezeamii, B. Idoko, "The future of wearable health technology: from monitoring to preventive healthcare," World J. Biol. Pharm., 2024. researchgate.net
- 187. J. D. Huang, J. Wang, E. Ramsey, G. Leavey, and T. J. A. Chico, "Applying artificial intelligence to wearable sensor data to diagnose and predict cardiovascular disease: a review," Sensors, vol. 2022, pp. 1-20, 2022. mdpi.com
- 188. V. Vijayan, J. P. Connolly, J. Condell, N. McKelvey, "Review of wearable devices and data collection considerations for connected health," Sensors, vol. 21, no. 3, 2021. mdpi.com
- 189. E. Lazarou and T. P. Exarchos, "Predicting stress levels using physiological data: Real-time stress prediction models utilizing wearable devices," AIMS neuroscience, 2024. nih.gov
- 190. S. Mehrdad, Y. Wang, and S. F. Atashzar, "...: wearable internet of medical things for remote tracking of symptoms, prediction of health anomalies, implementation of preventative measures, and control of virus ...," Frontiers in Robotics and AI, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 191. S. Sultana, M. S. H. Hriday, R. Haque, "Health monitoring through wearables: A systematic review of innovations in cardiovascular disease detection and prevention," Strategic Data, 2025. academia.edu
- 192. E. A. Jafleh, F. A. Alnaqbi, H. A. Almaeeni, S. Faqeeh, "The role of wearable devices in chronic disease monitoring and patient care: a comprehensive review," Cureus, 2024. cureus.com

- 193. F. Ekundayo, "Real-time monitoring and predictive modelling in oncology and cardiology using wearable data and AI," International Research Journal of Modernization in ... researchgate.net
- 194. F. El-Amrawy and M. Ismail Nounou, "Are Currently Available Wearable Devices for Activity Tracking and Heart Rate Monitoring Accurate, Precise, and Medically Beneficial?," 2015. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 195. J. L. Scheid, J. L. Reed, and S. L. West, "Commentary: Is Wearable Fitness Technology a Medically Approved Device? Yes and No," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 196. M. A. Rahaman, R. D. Taru, V. Prajapat, "Determinants of health-conscious consumers' intention to adopt fitness apps," Innovative..., 2023. businessperspectives.org
- 197. S. Jang and M. Kim, "Digital fitness revolution: User perspectives on Fitbit's role in health management," Behavioral Sciences, 2025. mdpi.com
- 198. G. Bizel, S. Srinivasan, and M. Zeitouny, "Understanding how fitness trackers and smartwatches motivate people to a healthy lifestyle," in *... world studies in the scope of ...*, 2022. saintpeters.edu
- 199. J. Kusch, "Strategic Positioning in Wearable Health Technology: Leveraging Consumer Centric Analytical Approaches for Market Leadership—Conjoint Analysis," 2025. [HTML]
- 200. N. Hayat, A. A. Salameh, A. A. Mamun, S. S. Alam, "Exploring the mass adoption potential of wearable fitness devices in Malaysia," *Health*, vol. 2023. sagepub.com
- 201. P. C. Wang, Y. L. Wu, and R. F. Chao, "Why do I change my health behavior? The role of mobile health monitoring and health consciousness," *International Journal of ...*, 2025. [HTML]
- 202. J. Luis Bayo-Monton, A. Martinez-Millana, W. Han, C. Fernández Llatas et al., "Wearable Sensors Integrated with Internet of Things for Advancing eHealth Care," 2018. [PDF]
- 203. I. Tomasic, N. Tomasic, R. Trobec, M. Krpan et al., "Continuous remote monitoring of COPD patients—justification and explanation of the requirements and a survey of the available technologies," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 204. V. Mouradian, "Remote monitoring of patient vital signs for personalized healthcare," 2017. [PDF]

- 205. N. El-Rashidy, S. El-Sappagh, S. M. R. Islam, and H. M. El-Bakry, "Mobile health in remote patient monitoring for chronic diseases: Principles, trends, and challenges," *Diagnostics*, vol. 11, no. 1, 2021. mdpi.com
- 206. T. Shaik, X. Tao, N. Higgins, L. Li, "Remote patient monitoring using artificial intelligence: Current state, applications, and challenges," Data Mining and Knowledge Discovery, vol. 37, no. 3, pp. 1234-1256, 2023. wiley.com
- 207. S. Mirjalali, S. Peng, Z. Fang, C. H. Wang, et al., "Wearable sensors for remote health monitoring: potential applications for early diagnosis of Covid-19," *Advanced Materials*, vol. 34, no. 15, 2022. wiley.com
- 208. R. Jegan and W. S. Nimi, "On the development of low power wearable devices for assessment of physiological vital parameters: a systematic review," Journal of Public Health, 2024. springer.com
- 209. B. M. Mahmmod, M. A. Naser, A. H. S. Al-Sudani, "Patient monitoring system based on internet of things: A review and related challenges with open research issues," IEEE, 2024. ieee.org
- 210. ŞS Busnatu, AG Niculescu, A Bolocan, "A review of digital health and biotelemetry: modern approaches towards personalized medicine and remote health assessment," Journal of Personalized Medicine, vol. 12, no. 5, 2022. mdpi.com
- 211. P. Palanisamy, A. Padmanabhan, A. Ramasamy, "Remote patient activity monitoring system by integrating IoT sensors and artificial intelligence techniques," Sensors, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 212. R. S. Bakalar, "Telemedicine: its past, present and future," in *Healthcare Information Management Systems: Cases ...*, 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 213. Y. T. Shen, L. Chen, W. W. Yue, and H. X. Xu, "Digital technology-based telemedicine for the COVID-19 pandemic," Frontiers in medicine, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 214. G. Sageena, M. Sharma, and A. Kapur, "Evolution of smart healthcare: Telemedicine during COVID-19 pandemic," Journal of The Institution of Engineers, vol. 2021, Springer, 2021. springer.com
- 215. S. Omboni, R. S. Padwal, T. Alessa, B. Benczúr, et al., "The worldwide impact of telemedicine during COVID-19: current evidence and recommendations for the future," Connected Health, 2022. nih.gov

- 216. T. O. Olorunsogo and O. D. Balogun, "Reviewing the evolution of US telemedicine post-pandemic by analyzing its growth, acceptability, and challenges in remote healthcare delivery during Global ...," World Journal of ..., 2024. semanticscholar.org
- 217. Z. Su, C. Li, H. Fu, L. Wang et al., "Development and prospect of telemedicine," Intelligent Medicine, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 218. EP Adeghe and CA Okolo, "A review of emerging trends in telemedicine: Healthcare delivery transformations," *International Journal of ... *, 2024. semanticscholar.org
- 219. E. I. Medvedeva and O. A. Aleksandrova, "Telemedicine in modern conditions: the attitude of society and the vector of development," i Sotsialnye Peremeny, 2022. vscc.ac.ru
- 220. A.S. George and A.S.H. George, "Telemedicine: a new way to provide healthcare," Partners Universal International Innovation, 2023. puiij.com
- 221. F. Cui, X. He, Y. Zhai, M. Lyu, J. Shi, D. Sun, and S. Jiang, "Application of telemedicine services based on a regional telemedicine platform in China from 2014 to 2020: longitudinal trend analysis," *Journal of Medical Internet Research*, vol. 2021. jmir.org
- 222. L. A. Dobrzański and A. D. Dobrzańska-Danikiewicz, "Effect of biomedical materials in the implementation of a long and healthy life policy," Processes, vol. 2021. mdpi.com
- 223. S. Dixit, S. Gupta, and A. Sharma, "Surgical Devices for Biomedical Implants," in *Additive Manufacturing for Biomedical ...*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 224. Y. David and T. Judd, "Evidence-based impact by clinical engineers on global patients outcomes," 2019. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 225. M. C. Kelvin-Agwu and M. O. Adelodun, "Innovative approaches to the maintenance and repair of biomedical devices in resource-limited settings," *Journal of Frontiers*, 2024. researchgate.net
- 226. P. A. Anawade, D. Sharma, S. Gahane, and P. A. Anawade Sr., "A comprehensive review on exploring the impact of telemedicine on healthcare accessibility," Cureus, 2024. cureus.com
- 227. W. Barbosa, K. Zhou, E. Waddell, T. Myers, "Improving access to care: telemedicine across medical domains," *Annual Review of...,* vol. 2021. annualreviews.org

- 228. S. Maleki Varnosfaderani and M. Forouzanfar, "The role of AI in hospitals and clinics: transforming healthcare in the 21st century," Bioengineering, 2024. mdpi.com
- 229. C. Elendu, D. C. Amaechi, A. U. Okatta, E. C. Amaechi, "The impact of simulation-based training in medical education: A review," Medicine, 2024. lww.com
- 230. A. Haleem, M. Javaid, R. P. Singh, S. Rab et al., "Applications of nanotechnology in medical field: a brief review," Global Health Journal, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 231. S. R. Sitaraman, "AI-driven healthcare systems enhanced by advanced data analytics and mobile computing," International Journal of Information Technology & ..., 2025. academia.edu
- 232. M. Javaid, A. Haleem, R. P. Singh, and R. Suman, "Sustaining the healthcare systems through the conceptual of biomedical engineering: A study with recent and future potentials," Biomedical Technology, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 233. D. M. Mathkor, N. Mathkor, Z. Bassfar, and F. Bantun, "Multirole of the internet of medical things (IoMT) in biomedical systems for managing smart healthcare systems: An overview of current and future innovative ...," in *Public Health*, 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 234. M. Aledhari, R. Razzak, B. Qolomany, A. Al-Fuqaha, "Biomedical IoT: enabling technologies, architectural elements, challenges, and future directions," in *IEEE*, 2022. ieee.org
- 235. G. H. R. Rao, "Biomedical Research and Healthcare: Opportunities, Expectations, and Limitations," 2018. [PDF]
- 236. C. D. Bright, "The Jet Makers: The Aerospace Industry from 1945 to 1972," 2021. [HTML]
- 237. A. Cohen, "Across the Country and Back for Dinner: A History of the Beginning of Jet Air Travel in the US," 2024. [HTML]
- 238. D. Eckardt, "Jet Web: CONNECTIONS in the Development History of Turbojet Engines 1920-1950," 2023. [HTML]
- 239. B. Vasigh and F. Azadian, "The globalization and evolution of the aviation industry," in *Aircraft Valuation in Volatile Market Conditions*, 2022, Springer. [HTML]

- 240. A. P. Cohen and S. A. Shaheen, "Urban air mobility: History, ecosystem, market potential, and challenges," in *Intelligent Transportation Systems*, 2021. escholarship.org
- 241. S. A. Göv, "Air transportation management and the effects of digital transformation strategies," in *Two Faces of Digital Transformation: Technological ...*, 2023. [HTML]
- 242. B. G. Franciscone, X. Zou, and E. Fernandes, "The Global South Air transport Belt: A catalyst for sustainable tourism and economic growth," Transport Policy, 2024. academia.edu
- 243. S. Chakraborty, "Adapting Pedagogy to Pocket-Sized Screens: A Mobile Learning Perspective," Available at SSRN 4774246, 2024. ssrn.com
- 244. N. De Vega, M. Basri, and S. Nur, "Pocket classroom: The future of EFL through innovative mobile learning," 2024. researchgate.net
- 245. R. A. Ruggieri and M. Mollo, "Smartphone and Tablet as Digital Babysitter," Social Sciences, vol. 2076, 2024. researchgate.net
- 246. M. A. Butt, "A perspective on Smart contact lenses: Pioneering non-intrusive eye health monitoring," Sensors and Actuators A: Physical, 2025. [HTML]
- 247. H. Jo and D. H. Park, "Affordance, usefulness, enjoyment, and aesthetics in sustaining virtual reality engagement," Scientific Reports, 2023. nature.com
- 248. G. Goggin, "Apps: From mobile phones to digital lives," 2021. [HTML]
- 249. F. Shojaei, "Exploring traditional and tech-based toddler education: a comparative study and VR game design for enhanced learning," Future of Information and Communication Conference, 2024. [HTML]
- 250. X. Jin, E. Kim, K. Kim, and S. Chen, "Innovative knowledge generation: exploring trends in the use of early childhood education apps in Chinese families," Journal of the Knowledge Economy, 2024. [HTML]
- 251. U. Krishnamoorthy, P. Lakshmipathy, M. Ramya, "Navigating the future of healthcare with innovations and challenges in implantable battery technology for biomedical devices," Discover Applied Sciences, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com

- 252. M. Deliorman and D. S. Ali, "Next-generation microfluidics for biomedical research and healthcare applications," *Biomedical Engineering*, vol. 2023. sagepub.com
- 253. A. Jaafari, Z. Rahmani, A. Zolfagharizadeh, "Innovations in Biomedical Engineering: A Comprehensive Review of Emerging Trends and Technologies," 2025. [HTML]
- 254. FJ Jaime, A Muñoz, F. Rodríguez-Gómez, "Strengthening privacy and data security in biomedical microelectromechanical systems by IoT communication security and protection in smart healthcare," Sensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 255. L. L. Gilson, "Why be creative: A review of the practical outcomes associated with creativity at the individual, group, and organizational levels," Handbook of organizational creativity, 2024. [HTML]
- 256. H. Wohl, "Innovation and creativity in creative industries," Sociology Compass, 2022. academia.edu
- 257. S. Luongo, F. Sepe, and G. Del Gaudio, "Regional innovation systems in tourism: The role of collaboration and competition," *Journal of Open Innovation: Technology*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 258. R. Kattel, W. Drechsler, and E. Karo, "How to make an entrepreneurial state: Why innovation needs bureaucracy," 2022. [HTML]
- 259. V. Grover and F. Niederman, "Research perspectives: The quest for innovation in information systems research: Recognizing, stimulating, and promoting novel and useful knowledge," *Journal of the Association for Information Systems*, vol. 22, no. 1, pp. 1-25, 2021. [HTML]
- 260. A. Priyono and A. Hidayat, "Dynamic capabilities for open innovation: A typology of pathways toward aligning resources, strategies and capabilities," *Journal of Open Innovation: Technology, Market and Society*, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 261. P. S. Aithal and S. Aithal, "Super innovation in higher education by nurturing business leaders through incubationship," *International Journal of Applied Engineering*, vol. 2023. ssrn.com
- 262. R. Volti and J. Croissant, "Society and technological change," 2024. [HTML]
- 263. S. Timotheou, O. Miliou, Y. Dimitriadis, "Impacts of digital technologies on education and factors influencing schools' digital

- capacity and transformation: A literature review," in *Information Technologies*, 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 264. V.D. Păvăloaia and S. C. Necula, "Artificial intelligence as a disruptive technology-a systematic literature review," Electronics, 2023. mdpi.com
- 265. C. H. Yang, "How artificial intelligence technology affects productivity and employment: Firm-level evidence from Taiwan," Research Policy, 2022. [HTML]
- 266. M. C. Zizic, M. Mladineo, N. Gjeldum, and L. Celent, "From industry 4.0 towards industry 5.0: A review and analysis of paradigm shift for the people, organization and technology," Energies, 2022. mdpi.com
- 267. S. Mondal, S. Das, and V. G. Vrana, "How to bell the cat? A theoretical review of generative artificial intelligence towards digital disruption in all walks of life," Technologies, 2023. mdpi.com
- 268. K. Ma, M. Chutiyami, Y. Zhang, and S. Nicoll, "Online teaching self-efficacy during COVID-19: Changes, its associated factors and moderators," in *... and Information Technologies*, 2021, Springer. springer.com
- 269. A. Arora, "Conceptualising Artificial Intelligence as a Digital Healthcare Innovation: An Introductory Review," 2020. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 270. K. Gouripur, "The impact of artificial intelligence on healthcare: A revolution in progress," The North and West London Journal of General, 2024. tnwljgp.org
- 271. F. Chadwick, "The AI Rx: Reshaping the Medical Landscape," health, 2025. researchgate.net
- 272. H. K. Hussain, A. Tariq, A. Y. Gill, and A. Ahmad, "Transforming healthcare: The rapid rise of artificial intelligence revolutionizing healthcare applications," BULLET: Jurnal Multidisiplin Ilmu, 2022. [HTML]
- 273. O. Panahi, "Navigating the AI Landscape in Healthcare and Public Health," Mathews J Nurs, 2025. researchgate.net
- 274. D. Mantaleon, "The evolving landscape of healthcare: challenges, innovations, and a vision for the future," Health Science Journal, 2023. [HTML]

- 275. D. B. Olawade, A. C. David-Olawade, O. Z. Wada, "Artificial intelligence in healthcare delivery: Prospects and pitfalls," *Public Health*, vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 276. M. Anita, C. Ambhika, and T. P. Anish, "Exploring the Landscape of Artificial Intelligence in Healthcare Applications," AI Healthcare, 2024. [HTML]
- 277. Z. Zhang and E. Sejdic, "Radiological images and machine learning: trends, perspectives, and prospects," 2019. [PDF]
- 278. S. M. D. A. C. Jayatilake et al., "Involvement of machine learning tools in healthcare decision making," *Journal of Healthcare*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library, 2021. wiley.com
- 279. L. Adlung, Y. Cohen, U. Mor, and E. Elinav, "Machine learning in clinical decision making," Med, 2021. cell.com
- 280. L. Rubinger, A. Gazendam, S. Ekhtiari, and M. Bhandari, "Machine learning and artificial intelligence in research and healthcare," Injury, 2023. [HTML]
- 281. J. M. Schwartz, A. J. Moy, S. C. Rossetti, et al., "Clinician involvement in research on machine learning–based predictive clinical decision support for the hospital setting: A scoping review," *American Medical*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 282. EH Weissler, T. Naumann, T. Andersson, R. Ranganath, "The role of machine learning in clinical research: transforming the future of evidence generation," Trials, vol. 22, no. 1, 2021. springer.com
- 283. A. Brnabic and L. M. Hess, "Systematic literature review of machine learning methods used in the analysis of real-world data for patient-provider decision making," BMC medical informatics and decision making, 2021. springer.com
- 284. S. Sanchez-Martinez, O. Camara, G. Piella, "Machine learning for clinical decision-making: challenges and opportunities in cardiovascular imaging," Frontiers in ..., 2022. frontiersin.org
- 285. S. Eloranta and M. Boman, "Predictive models for clinical decision making: Deep dives in practical machine learning," Journal of internal medicine, 2022. wiley.com
- 286. P. Shah, J. Lester, J. G Deflino, and V. Pai, "Responsible Deep Learning for Software as a Medical Device," 2023. [PDF]

- 287. M. Tsuneki, "Deep learning models in medical image analysis," Journal of Oral Biosciences, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 288. J. Rasheed, "... the effect of filtering and feature-extraction techniques in a machine learning model for identification of infectious disease using radiography imaging," Symmetry, 2022. mdpi.com
- 289. Y. T. Jan, P. S. Tsai, W. H. Huang, L. Y. Chou, S. C. Huang, "Machine learning combined with radiomics and deep learning features extracted from CT images: a novel AI model to distinguish benign from malignant ovarian ...," in *... into imaging*, 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 290. M. Ma, R. Liu, C. Wen, W. Xu, Z. Xu, S. Wang, and J. Wu, "Predicting the molecular subtype of breast cancer and identifying interpretable imaging features using machine learning algorithms," *Radiology*, vol. 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 291. S. M. Ahmed and R. J. Mstafa, "Identifying severity grading of knee osteoarthritis from x-ray images using an efficient mixture of deep learning and machine learning models," Diagnostics, 2022. mdpi.com
- 292. R. Fusco, R. Grassi, V. Granata, S. V. Setola, "Artificial intelligence and COVID-19 using chest CT scan and chest X-ray images: machine learning and deep learning approaches for diagnosis and ...," Journal of Personalized Medicine, vol. 11, no. 1, 2021. mdpi.com
- 293. M. W. Wagner, K. Namdar, A. Biswas, S. Monah, F. Khalvati, et al., "Radiomics, machine learning, and artificial intelligence-what the neuroradiologist needs to know," Neuroradiology, vol. 63, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2021. springer.com
- 294. S. Pasricha, "Ethics for Digital Medicine: A Path for Ethical Emerging Medical IoT Design," 2022. [PDF]
- 295. V. A. Luyckx, "Ethical challenges of clinical innovations and medical progress," Nephrology Dialysis Transplantation, 2024. archive.org
- 296. K. S. Aluru, "Ethical Considerations in AI-driven Healthcare Innovation," *International Journal of Machine Learning Research*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2023. researchgate.net
- 297. T. Pham, "Ethical and legal considerations in healthcare AI: innovation and policy for safe and fair use," Royal Society Open Science, 2025. royalsocietypublishing.org

- 298. H. Siipi and M. Kangasniemi, "Ethical Aspects and Innovations in Healthcare," in *... in Healthcare: From Problem to Innovative ...*, 2023, Springer. [HTML]
- 299. M. Khan and A. M. K. Sherani, "Healthcare Meets AI: Innovations, Applications, and Ethical Considerations," BULLET: Jurnal Multidisiplin Ilmu, 2024. [HTML]
- 300. M. M. Khan, N. Shah, N. Shaikh, and A. Thabet, "Towards secure and trusted AI in healthcare: a systematic review of emerging innovations and ethical challenges," *International Journal of ...*, 2025. sciencedirect.com
- C. Elendu, D. C. Amaechi, T. C. Elendu, K. A. Jingwa, "Ethical implications of AI and robotics in healthcare: A review," Medicine, vol. 2023. lww.com
- 302. N. Naik, B. M. Hameed, D. K. Shetty, D. Swain, M. Shah, "Legal and ethical consideration in artificial intelligence in healthcare: who takes responsibility?" Frontiers in ..., 2022. frontiersin.org
- 303. L. Ghimire and E. Waller, "The Future of Health Physics: Trends, Challenges, and Innovation," Health Physics, 2025. [HTML]
- 304. J. Cornejo, J. A. Cornejo-Aguilar, M. Vargas, "Anatomical Engineering and 3D printing for surgery and medical devices: International review and future exponential innovations," BioMed Research, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 305. R. B. Turg'unovich, "The role of innovative educational technologies in teaching biophysics," Research and Education, 2023. tma.uz
- 306. R. Beckers, Z. Kwade, and F. Zanca, "The EU medical device regulation: Implications for artificial intelligence-based medical device software in medical physics," Physica Medica, 2021. physicamedica.com
- 307. D. R. Reyes, H. van Heeren, S. Guha, and L. Herbertson, "Accelerating innovation and commercialization through standardization of microfluidic-based medical devices," Lab on a Chip, vol. 21, no. 12, pp. 2345-2356, 2021. rsc.org
- 308. D. F. Silva, A. L. P. Melo, A. F. C. Uchôa, G. M. A. Pereira et al., "Biomedical Approach of Nanotechnology and Biological Risks: A Mini-Review," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 309. S. Malik, K. Muhammad, and Y. Waheed, "Emerging applications of

- nanotechnology in healthcare and medicine," Molecules, 2023. mdpi.com
- 310. T. Sahu, Y. K. Ratre, S. Chauhan, and L. Bhaskar, "Nanotechnology based drug delivery system: Current strategies and emerging therapeutic potential for medical science," *Journal of Drug Delivery Science and Technology*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 311. S. Anjum, S. Ishaque, H. Fatima, W. Farooq, C. Hano, "Emerging applications of nanotechnology in healthcare systems: Grand challenges and perspectives," *Pharmaceuticals*, vol. 14, no. 9, 2021. mdpi.com
- 312. C. Binns, "Introduction to nanoscience and nanotechnology," 2021. [HTML]
- 313. L. Pokrajac, A. Abbas, W. Chrzanowski, and G. M. Dias, "Nanotechnology for a sustainable future: Addressing global challenges with the international network4sustainable nanotechnology," ACS Publications, 2021. acs.org
- 314. V. Chandrakala, V. Aruna, and G. Angajala, "Review on metal nanoparticles as nanocarriers: Current challenges and perspectives in drug delivery systems," Emergent Materials, 2022. springer.com
- 315. W. Xia, Z. Tao, B. Zhu, W. Zhang, C. Liu, and S. Chen, "Targeted delivery of drugs and genes using polymer nanocarriers for cancer therapy," *International Journal of ...*, vol. 2021. mdpi.com
- 316. M. J. Mitchell, M. M. Billingsley, R. M. Haley, et al., "Engineering precision nanoparticles for drug delivery," *Nature Reviews Drug Discovery*, vol. 20, no. 2, pp. 101-119, 2021. nature.com
- 317. T. C. Ezike, U. S. Okpala, U. L. Onoja, C. P. Nwike, and E. C. Ezeako, "Advances in drug delivery systems, challenges and future directions," Heliyon, 2023. cell.com
- 318. S. Porrang, N. Rahemi, S. Davaran, M. Mahdavi, "Direct surface modification of mesoporous silica nanoparticles by DBD plasma as a green approach to prepare dual-responsive drug delivery system," *Journal of the Taiwan*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. irantypist.com
- 319. O. Afzal, A.S.A. Altamimi, M.S. Nadeem, S.I. Alzarea, "Nanoparticles in drug delivery: from history to therapeutic applications," Nanomaterials, vol. 12, no. 2022. mdpi.com
- 320. Z. Wei, Y. Zhou, R. Wang, J. Wang et al., "Aptamers as smart ligands

- for targeted drug delivery in cancer therapy," Pharmaceutics, 2022. mdpi.com
- 321. Y. Sun, W. Lou, H. Feng, W. Su et al., "A microexplosive shockwave-based drug delivery microsystem for treating hard-to-reach areas in the human body," 2022. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 322. N. Sargioti, T. J. Levingstone, E. D. O'Cearbhaill, "Metallic microneedles for transdermal drug delivery: applications, fabrication techniques and the effect of geometrical characteristics," Bioengineering, vol. 2022. mdpi.com
- 323. S. Mdanda, P. Ubanako, P. P. D. Kondiah, and P. Kumar, "Recent advances in microneedle platforms for transdermal drug delivery technologies," *Polymers*, vol. 13, no. 4, 2021. mdpi.com
- 324. Y. Sun, W. Lou, H. Feng, W. Su et al., "A microexplosive shockwave-based drug delivery microsystem for treating hard-to-reach areas in the human body," Microsystems & Nanoengineering, 2022. nature.com
- 325. V. Thakkar and S. Dalwadi, "Recent Development and Advancement in Microneedle-Assisted Drug Delivery System Used," in *Role of Nanotechnology in Cancer ... *, 2023. [HTML]
- 326. G. Pitzanti, "Lipid nanocarriers and 3D printed hollow microneedles as strategies to promote drug delivery via the skin," 2021. unica.it
- 327. A. Kumar, M. Byadwal, A. Kumar, "Laser micromachining in biomedical industry," in *...-based technologies for ...*, 2023. [HTML]
- 328. F. Akhter, "Assessment of Plasmonic Photothermal Therapy through a Fiberoptic Microneedle Device for Pancreatic Cancer Treatment," 2021. [HTML]
- 329. A. Zahraa Khalifa, H. Zyad, H. Mohammed, K. Ihsan et al., "Recent advances in remotely controlled pulsatile drug delivery systems," 2022. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 330. A. Z. Khalifa, H. Zyad, H. Mohammed, K. Ihsan, "Recent advances in remotely controlled pulsatile drug delivery systems," *Journal of Advanced*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. lww.com
- 331. F. Del Bono, N. Di Trani, D. Demarchi, A. Grattoni, "Active implantable drug delivery systems: engineering factors, challenges, opportunities," Lab on a Chip, 2025. rsc.org

- 332. X. Wei, Y. Wang, H. Hu, T. Sheng, Y. Yao, "Wirelessly controlled drug delivery systems for translational medicine," Nature Reviews, 2025. [HTML]
- 333. D. V. Voronin, A. A. Abalymov, Y. I. Svenskaya, et al., "Key Points in remote-controlled drug delivery: From the carrier design to clinical trials," *International Journal of ...*, 2021. mdpi.com
- 334. L. Sarma, S. Singh, Anjali, and D. Dutta, "Challenges and Future Directions for Next-Generation Drug Delivery Systems," in *Next-Generation Drug Delivery Systems*, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 335. K. Baker and T. Hoare, "Injectable pulsatile drug delivery hydrogels: how do we get to the clinic?," Expert Opinion on Drug Delivery, 2025. tandfonline.com
- 336. H. Hricak, M. Abdel-Wahab, R. Atun, M. M. Lette, et al., "Medical imaging and nuclear medicine: a Lancet Oncology Commission," The Lancet, vol. 397, no. 10271, pp. 1574-1585, 2021. [HTML]
- 337. R. R. Kothinti, "Artificial intelligence in healthcare: Revolutionizing precision medicine, predictive analytics, and ethical considerations in autonomous diagnostics," World Journal of Advanced Research and Reviews, 2024. researchgate.net
- 338. M. G. Lanjewar, K. G. Panchbhai, and L. B. Patle, "Sugar detection in adulterated honey using hyper-spectral imaging with stacking generalization method," Food Chemistry, 2024. [HTML]
- 339. S. Salloway, S. Chalkias, F. Barkhof, P. Burkett, et al., "Amyloid-related imaging abnormalities in 2 phase 3 studies evaluating aducanumab in patients with early Alzheimer disease," JAMA, vol. 327, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2022. jamanetwork.com
- 340. V. Reddy, W. Spear, and DECAAF II Investigators, "Effect of MRI-guided fibrosis ablation vs conventional catheter ablation on atrial arrhythmia recurrence in patients with persistent atrial fibrillation: the DECAAF II," *JAMA*, 2022. jamanetwork.com
- 341. H. Chen, C. Gomez, C. M. Huang, and M. Unberath, "Explainable medical imaging AI needs human-centered design: guidelines and evidence from a systematic review," NPJ digital medicine, 2022. nature.com
- 342. R. Aggarwal, V. Sounderajah, G. Martin, D. S. W. Ting, et al., "Diagnostic accuracy of deep learning in medical imaging: a systematic

- review and meta-analysis," NPJ Digital Medicine, vol. 4, no. 1, 2021. nature.com
- 343. A. B. Abdusalomov, M. Mukhiddinov, and T. K. Whangbo, "Brain tumor detection based on deep learning approaches and magnetic resonance imaging," Cancers, 2023. mdpi.com
- 344. K. A. Fleming, S. Horton, M. L. Wilson, R. Atun, K. DeStigter, et al., "The Lancet Commission on diagnostics: transforming access to diagnostics," The Lancet, 2021. thelancet.com
- 345. A. Ten COVID-19 Cardiac Registry Investigators, "Prevalence of clinical and subclinical myocarditis in competitive athletes with recent SARS-CoV-2 infection: results from the big ten COVID-19 cardiac registry," JAMA, 2021. jamanetwork.com
- 346. S. Aime, A. Alberich, A. Almen, O. Arthurs et al., "Strategic research agenda for biomedical imaging," 2019. [PDF]
- 347. A. Webb, "Introduction to biomedical imaging," 2022. ethz.ch
- 348. L. Pinto-Coelho, "How artificial intelligence is shaping medical imaging technology: a survey of innovations and applications," Bioengineering, 2023. mdpi.com
- 349. B. Hunt, A. J. Ruiz, and B. W. Pogue, "Smartphone-based imaging systems for medical applications: a critical review," Journal of Biomedical Optics, 2021. spiedigitallibrary.org
- 350. A. Pulumati, A. Pulumati, B. S. Dwarakanath, "Technological advancements in cancer diagnostics: Improvements and limitations," *Cancer*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 351. P. Manickam, S. A. Mariappan, S. M. Murugesan, S. Hansda, "Artificial intelligence (AI) and internet of medical things (IoMT) assisted biomedical systems for intelligent healthcare," Biosensors, vol. 2022. mdpi.com
- 352. R. Bhatia, "Emerging health technologies and how they can transform healthcare delivery," Journal of Health Management, 2021. [HTML]
- 353. A. M. Okamura, M. J. Mataric, and H. I. Christensen, "Medical and health-care robotics," 2010. [PDF]
- 354. J. Troccaz, "Medical robotics: where we come from, where we are and where we could go," 2008. [PDF]
- 355. J. Zhu, L. Lyu, Y. Xu, H. Liang, and X. Zhang, "Intelligent soft

- surgical robots for next-generation minimally invasive surgery," *Intelligent Systems*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 356. B. Johansson and E. Eriksson, "Robotic surgery: review on minimally invasive techniques," in *Fusion of ...*, 2021. fusionproceedings.com
- 357. APP Ayme, JMC Suárez, MMP Ortega, "Advancements in minimally invasive surgical techniques: a comprehensive review," Salud, Ciencia y ..., 2024. archive.org
- 358. T. Haidegger, S. Speidel, D. Stoyanov, et al., "Robot-assisted minimally invasive surgery—Surgical robotics in the data age," in *Proceedings of the ...*, 2022. ieee.org
- 359. G. Dagnino and D. Kundrat, "Robot-assistive minimally invasive surgery: trends and future directions," *International Journal of Intelligent Robotics and Automation*, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 360. Z. Qadrie, M. Maqbool, M. A. Dar, and A. Qadir, "Navigating challenges and maximizing potential: Handling complications and constraints in minimally invasive surgery," Open Health, 2025. degruyterbrill.com
- 361. S. Pasupuleti, "The role of robotic systems in minimally invasive surgery: Benefits, risks, and future directions," *International Journal of Scientific Research in ...*, 2021. researchgate.net
- 362. K. Reddy, P. Gharde, H. Tayade, M. Patil, and L. S. Reddy, "Advancements in robotic surgery: a comprehensive overview of current utilizations and upcoming frontiers," Cureus, 2023. cureus.com
- 363. J. R. Jeganathan, R. Jegasothy, and W. T. Sia, "Minimally invasive surgery: a historical and legal perspective on technological transformation," Journal of Robotic Surgery, 2025. springer.com
- 364. P. N Kakar, J. Das, P. Mittal Roy, and V. Pant, "Robotic invasion of operation theatre and associated anaesthetic issues: A review," 2011. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 365. N. Feizi, M. Tavakoli, R. V. Patel, "Robotics and AI for teleoperation, tele-assessment, and tele-training for surgery in the era of COVID-19: Existing challenges, and future vision," Frontiers in Robotics and AI, vol. 8, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 366. C. C. Nguyen, S. Wong, M. T. Thai, "Advanced user interfaces for teleoperated surgical robotic systems," *Advanced Sensor*, 2023.

- wiley.com
- 367. R. V. Patel, S. F. Atashzar, and M. Tavakoli, "Haptic feedback and force-based teleoperation in surgical robotics," Proceedings of the IEEE, 2022. ieee.org
- 368. B. Seeliger, J. W. Collins, F. Porpiglia, "The role of virtual reality, telesurgery, and teleproctoring in robotic surgery," in *Robotic Urologic Surgery*, 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 369. M. M. Rahman, M. V. Balakuntala, and G. Gonzalez, "Sartres: a semiautonomous robot teleoperation environment for surgery," *Computer Methods in Biomechanics and Biomedical Engineering*, vol. 2021, Taylor & Francis. nsf.gov
- 370. S. S. Mehta, "Commercializing successful biomedical technologies," 2022. [HTML]
- 371. A. A. Vărzaru and C. G. Bocean, "Digital transformation and innovation: The influence of digital technologies on turnover from innovation activities and types of innovation," Systems, 2024. mdpi.com
- 372. N. Rane, "Integrating leading-edge artificial intelligence (AI), internet of things (IOT), and big data technologies for smart and sustainable architecture, engineering and ...," in *... and Construction (AEC) Industry: Challenges and ...*, 2023. ssrn.com
- 373. M. Ammar, N. J. Al-Thani, and Z. Ahmad, "Role of pedagogical approaches in fostering innovation among K-12 students in STEM education," Social Sciences & Humanities Open, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 374. M. Shahzad, Y. Qu, A. U. Zafar, "Does the interaction between the knowledge management process and sustainable development practices boost corporate green innovation?" *Business Strategy and the Environment*, vol. 30, no. 5, pp. 2101-2116, 2021. [HTML]
- 375. J. L. Graves Jr, M. Kearney, and G. Barabino, "Inequality in science and the case for a new agenda," *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*, vol. 2022. pnas.org
- 376. A. N. Obiki-Osafiele and C. P. Efunniyi, "Theoretical models for enhancing operational efficiency through technology in Nigerian businesses," in *Research in Social*, 2024. researchgate.net
- 377. S. Bhat and A. Kumar, "Biomaterials and bioengineering tomorrow's

- healthcare," 2013. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 378. M. Oleksy, K. Dynarowicz, and D. Aebisher, "Advances in Biodegradable Polymers and Biomaterials for Medical Applications—A Review," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 379. E. T. J. Chong, J. W. Ng, and P. C. Lee, "Classification and medical applications of biomaterials—a mini review," BIO integration, 2023. scienceopen.com
- 380. S. Todros, M. Todesco, and A. Bagno, "Biomaterials and their biomedical applications: from replacement to regeneration," Processes, 2021. mdpi.com
- 381. M. S. B. Reddy, D. Ponnamma, R. Choudhary, "A comparative review of natural and synthetic biopolymer composite scaffolds," Polymers, 2021. mdpi.com
- 382. K. Joyce, G. T. Fabra, Y. Bozkurt, and A. Pandit, "Bioactive potential of natural biomaterials: Identification, retention and assessment of biological properties," Signal Transduction and..., vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. nature.com
- 383. R. Philip Tan, "Developing Translational Tissue Engineering Solutions for Regenerative Medicine," 2018. [PDF]
- 384. G. Velikic, D. M. Maric, D. L. Maric, G. Supic, "Harnessing the stem cell niche in regenerative medicine: innovative avenue to combat neurodegenerative diseases," *International Journal of ...*, 2024. mdpi.com
- 385. A. B. Kumbhar, N. V. Nerkar, and A. N. Phuge, "Regenerative medicines: application to degenerative diseases and disorders," Biosystems, Biomedical & Drug, vol. 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 386. K. L. McKinley, M. T. Longaker, and S. Naik, "Emerging frontiers in regenerative medicine," Science, 2023. science.org
- 387. E. Bono, S. H Mathes, N. Franscini, and U. Graf-Hausner, "Tissue Engineering the gateway to regenerative medicine," 2010. [PDF]
- 388. D. P. Pacheco, N. S. Vargas, S. Visentin, and P. Petrini, "From tissue engineering to engineering tissues: the role and application of in vitro models," Biomaterials Science, 2021. unito.it
- 389. N. Ashammakhi, A. GhavamiNejad, R. Tutar, "Highlights on advancing frontiers in tissue engineering," Tissue Engineering, vol.

- XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. nih.gov
- 390. A. F. J. de Kanter, K. R. Jongsma, M. C. Verhaar, et al., "The ethical implications of tissue engineering for regenerative purposes: a systematic review," Tissue Engineering, vol. 2023. liebertpub.com
- 391. L. Ajmal, S. Ajmal, M. Ajmal, and G. Nawaz, "Organ regeneration through stem cells and tissue engineering," Cureus, 2023. cureus.com
- 392. S. N. Nova, M. S. Rahman, and A. S. M. S. Hosen, "Deep learning in biomedical devices: Perspectives, applications, and challenges," Rhythms in Healthcare, 2022. researchgate.net
- 393. C. Chircov and A. M. Grumezescu, "Microelectromechanical systems (MEMS) for biomedical applications," Micromachines, 2022. mdpi.com
- 394. E. Güneş and R. Şekerdil, "Overcoming challenges in entrepreneurial and innovative endeavors," Girişimcilik ve Kalkınma Dergisi, 2024. dergipark.org.tr
- 395. C. Oham and O. G. Ejike, "Creativity and collaboration in creative industries: Proposing a conceptual model for enhanced team dynamics," Magna Scientia Advanced Research and ..., 2024. researchgate.net
- 396. A. J. Singun, "Unveiling the barriers to digital transformation in higher education institutions: a systematic literature review," Discover Education, 2025. springer.com
- 397. J. Rodriguez-Manzano and S. Subramaniam, "Innovative diagnostic technologies: navigating regulatory frameworks through advances, challenges, and future prospects," The Lancet Digital Health, 2024. thelancet.com
- 398. A. Boros, E. Szólik, G. Desalegn, and D. Tőzsér, "A Systematic Review of Opportunities and Limitations of Innovative Practices in Sustainable Agriculture," Agronomy, 2024. mdpi.com
- 399. S. Banerjee, C. M. Booth, E. Bruera, et al., "Two decades of advances in clinical oncology—lessons learned and future directions," *Nature Reviews*, 2024. nih.gov
- 400. Y. M. Al-Worafi, "Access to the Medical Devices in Developing Countries," in *Medical and Health Sciences in Developing Countries*, Springer, 2023. [HTML]

- 401. R. Filip and R. Gheorghita Puscaselu, "Global challenges to public health care systems during the COVID-19 pandemic: a review of pandemic measures and problems," *Personalized Medicine*, vol. 2022. mdpi.com
- 402. B. K. Matin, H. J. Williamson, A. K. Karyani, and S. Rezaei, "Barriers in access to healthcare for women with disabilities: a systematic review in qualitative studies," *Women's Health*, vol. 2021, Springer. springer.com
- 403. E. Mbunge, B. Muchemwa, S. Jiyane, and J. Batani, "Sensors and healthcare 5.0: transformative shift in virtual care through emerging digital health technologies," Global Health Journal, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 404. J. Shahid, R. Ahmad, A. K. Kiani, T. Ahmad, and S. Saeed, "Data protection and privacy of the internet of healthcare things (IoHTs)," *Applied Sciences*, vol. 12, no. 1, 2022. mdpi.com
- 405. Y. Mahendradhata, N. L. P. E. Andayani, E. T. Hasri, et al., "The capacity of the Indonesian healthcare system to respond to COVID-19," *Frontiers in Public Health*, vol. 2021. frontiersin.org
- 406. B. Matovu, J. Winfred Baluka, M. Takuwa, L. Kevin Namuli et al., "Translating medical device innovations to market a Ugandan perspective," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 407. B. Octavie Mainsah, "Important Factors for the Design of Medical Devices for Developing Countries," 2008. [PDF]
- 408. M. Chandra, K. Kumar, P. Thakur, "Digital technologies, healthcare and Covid-19: insights from developing and emerging nations," in *Journal of Science and Technology*, 2022, Springer. springer.com
- 409. Z. Mohammadzadeh, H. R. Saeidnia, A. Lotfata, et al., "Smart city healthcare delivery innovations: a systematic review of essential technologies and indicators for developing nations," BMC Health Services, vol. 23, no. 1, 2023. springer.com
- 410. G. Ellingsen, M. Hertzum, and L. Melby, "The tension between national and local concerns in preparing for large-scale generic systems in healthcare," *Computer Supported Cooperative Work*, vol. 2022, Springer.springer.com
- 411. P. Kasinathan, R. Pugazhendhi, R. M. Elavarasan, et al., "Realization of sustainable development goals with disruptive technologies by

- integrating industry 5.0, society 5.0, smart cities and villages," Sustainability, vol. 2022. mdpi.com
- 412. A. B. Singh and C. Khandelwal, "Advancements in healthcare materials: unraveling the impact of processing techniques on biocompatibility and performance," Plastics Technology and ..., 2024. [HTML]
- 413. W. Al-Zyoud, D. Haddadin, S. A. Hasan, H. Jaradat, "Biocompatibility testing for implants: A novel tool for selection and characterization," Materials, 2023. mdpi.com
- 414. S. Arfan, R. Saleem, L. Irshad, M. Anas, "Regulatory Considerations for Biocompatible Light Emitters," in *Emitters For Biomedical*, Springer, 2025. researchgate.net
- 415. V. Vakhter, B. Soysal, and P. Schaumont, "Threat modeling and risk analysis for miniaturized wireless biomedical devices," IEEE Internet of Things Journal, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. ieee.org
- 416. Y. S. Choi, R. T. Yin, A. Pfenniger, J. Koo, R. Avila, et al., "Fully implantable and bioresorbable cardiac pacemakers without leads or batteries," *Nature*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 417. C. Amaral, M. Paiva, A. R. Rodrigues, F. Veiga et al., "Global regulatory challenges for medical devices: impact on innovation and market access," Applied Sciences, 2024. mdpi.com
- 418. M. Bretthauer, S. Gerke, C. Hassan, "The new European medical device regulation: balancing innovation and patient safety," *Journal of Internal Medicine*, 2023. uit.no
- 419. P. Shivakumar, "The role of open innovation in medical device development: challenges of navigating the European regulatory landscape," 2025. ktu.edu
- 420. Z. Dai, Y. Ma, and Q. Li, "China's Particle Therapy Equipment Market: Opportunities Outweigh Challenges," 2020. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 421. B. Singh, "... alternative dispute resolution (ADR) in resolving complex legal-technical issues arising in cyberspace lensing e-commerce and intellectual property: proliferation of e ...," Journal of Alternative Dispute Resolution-RBADR, 2023. emnuvens.com.br
- 422. C. Daraojimba, K. M. Abioye, A. D. Bakare, "Technology and innovation to growth of entrepreneurship and financial boost: a decade in review (2013-2023)," International Journal of ..., 2023.

- academia.edu
- 423. W. G. Mengesha, "Cutting-edge physics driven advancements in medical industry," American Journal of Modern Physics, 2024. researchgate.net
- 424. S. T. Kumbhar, M. Bhatia, and V. Patel, "Health-care Systems around the World: Diversity, Challenges, and Innovations," Archives of Medicine and Health, 2025. lww.com
- 425. L. H. Alzubaidi and P. Ravikanth, "The Future of Healthcare: Emerging Technologies and Trends," in *Sports Science and Technology*, 2025. [HTML]
- 426. E. H Twizell, "Partial differential equations in medical biophysics," 1982. [PDF]
- 427. S. S. Mehta, "Commercializing successful biomedical technologies," 2022. [HTML]
- 428. , "Influences on innovation : extrapolations to biomedical technology," 1981. [PDF]
- 429. Z. Qimin, "Science and technology innovation and international biomedical development," in *China's opportunities for development in an era of ...*, Springer, 2023. [HTML]
- 430. A. S. Kesselheim, S. Xu, and J. Avorn, "Clinicians' Contributions to the Development of Coronary Artery Stents: A Qualitative Study of Transformative Device Innovation," 2014. [PDF]
- 431. A. I. Newaz, A. K. Sikder, M. A. Rahman, "A survey on security and privacy issues in modern healthcare systems: Attacks and defenses," in *Computing for Healthcare*, 2021. acm.org
- 432. B. Ransford, D. B. Kramer, D. Foo Kune, J. Auto de Medeiros et al., "Cybersecurity and medical devices: A practical guide for cardiac electrophysiologists," 2017. [PDF]
- 433. Y. He, A. Aliyu, M. Evans, and C. Luo, "Health care cybersecurity challenges and solutions under the climate of COVID-19: scoping review," Journal of medical Internet research, 2021. jmir.org
- 434. R. Salama, C. Altrjman, and F. Al-Turjman, "Healthcare cybersecurity challenges: a look at current and future trends," *Computational Intelligence and ...*, 2024. [HTML]
- 435. S. Ahmed, "BYOD, Personal Area Networks (PANs) and IOT: Threats

- to Patients Privacy," 2019. [PDF]
- 436. N. Abbasi and D. A. Smith, "Cybersecurity in Healthcare: Securing Patient Health Information (PHI), HIPPA compliance framework and the responsibilities of healthcare providers," *Journal of Knowledge Learning and Science*, 2024. jklst.org
- 437. F. H. Semantha, S. Azam, B. Shanmugam, and K. C. Yeo, "A conceptual framework to ensure privacy in patient record management system," in *IEEE*, 2021. ieee.org
- 438. S. Huhn, M. Axt, H. C. Gunga, and M. A. Maggioni, "The impact of wearable technologies in health research: scoping review," *JMIR mHealth and uHealth*, vol. 10, no. 7, 2022. jmir.org
- 439. M. Emmanuel, "Hidden Costs and Accessibility Barriers of Medical Wearables," 2024. researchgate.net
- 440. M. A. Gianfrancesco and N. D. Goldstein, "A narrative review on the validity of electronic health record-based research in epidemiology," BMC medical research methodology, 2021. springer.com
- 441. M. Khalifa and M. Albadawy, "AI in diagnostic imaging: revolutionising accuracy and efficiency," Computer Methods and Programs in Biomedicine, vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com